
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
FEBRUARY 27, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

February 27, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Nathan Renner – Troy Seventh Day 
Adventist Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 William Beaumont Hospital – City of Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority 
Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds 1 

C-2 Adoption of Brownfield Plan #4 for TCF Bank – 1470 Coolidge – South of Maple, 
East of Coolidge, Section 32 2 

C-3 Continuation of Public Hearing – Proposed Amendment to the Boundaries of the 
Downtown District of the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 3 



POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 No Postponed Items 3 

CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 4 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 4 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory 
Committee; Historic District Commission; Liquor Advisory Committee; Municipal 
Building Authority; and Traffic Committee 5 

F-2 Contract Ratification – Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) and City of 
Troy 6 

F-3 Contract Ratification – Troy Fire Staff Officers Association (TFSOA) and City of 
Troy 7 

F-4 Contract Ratification – American Federation of State, County and Municipal 
Employees (AFSCME) and City of Troy 7 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 7 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 7 

a) Rezoning Request – East Side of Livernois, South of Wattles, Section 22 – R-
1C to C-F (Z-713) – March 20, 2006 .................................................................... 7 



G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 7 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 7 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 7 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 8 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 8 

REPORTS: 8 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 8 

J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 8 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 8 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 8 

J-5  Calendar 8 

J-6  Correspondence from Troy Chamber of Commerce President Michele Hodges 
Regarding Continuation of the Public Hearing on Excluding the Proposed Monarch 
Development from the DDA Boundaries 8 

J-7  Papadelis v. City of Troy 8 

STUDY ITEMS: 8 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 8 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 8 

CLOSED SESSION: 9 

L-1 Closed Session: 9 



RECESSED 9 

RECONVENED 9 

ADJOURNMENT 9 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 9 

Tuesday, February 28, 2006 (Joint Troy Daze Advisory Committee)  Special City Council ... 9 
Monday, March 6, 2006 Regular City Council ......................................................... 9 
Monday, March 20, 2006 Regular City Council ....................................................... 9 
Monday, March 27, 2006 Regular City Council ....................................................... 9 
Monday, April 3, 2006 Regular City Council............................................................ 9 
Monday, April 17, 2006 Regular City Council.......................................................... 9 
Monday, April 24, 2006 (Budget Study Session) Regular City Council ................... 9 
Monday, May 8, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................................ 9 
Monday, May 15, 2006 Regular City Council .......................................................... 9 
Monday, May 22, 2006 Regular City Council .......................................................... 9 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 27, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Nathan Renner – Troy Seventh 
Day Adventist Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items    
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 William Beaumont Hospital – City of Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority 
Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority (the “Authority”) proposes to 
make loans to William Beaumont Hospital (the “Hospital”), to be used, in part, by the Hospital to 
refinance indebtedness used to finance the construction, renovation and equipping of certain 
hospital facilities in the City of Troy, Michigan;  

WHEREAS, The Authority intends to issue City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group) and Hospital Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group), in one or more series 
(collectively, the “Bonds”) on behalf of the Hospital in the aggregate principal amount of not to 
exceed $235,000,000 to provide funds with which to make loans to the Hospital;  

WHEREAS, The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority and will not constitute general 
obligations or debt of the City of Royal Oak, the City of Troy, the County of Oakland, the State 
of Michigan or any political subdivision thereof;  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 27, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council has held a public hearing after notice was published as provided 
in, and in satisfaction of the applicable public hearing requirements of, the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”);  

WHEREAS, A record of public hearing will be maintained with the City Clerk; 

WHEREAS, The Authority has requested that this City Council approve the issuance of the 
Bonds by the Authority;  

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy desires to express its approval of the issuance 
of the Bonds by the Authority. 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TROY, AS FOLLOWS: 

1.   Solely for the purpose of fulfilling the public approval requirements of the Code, 
the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the issuance, sale and 
delivery of not to exceed $235,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds by the Authority. 

2. The City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO PROVIDE three (3) certified copies of 
this resolution to the Secretary of the Authority. 

Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Adoption of Brownfield Plan #4 for TCF Bank – 1470 Coolidge – South of Maple, 

East of Coolidge, Section 32 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Brownfield Redevelopment Authority approved on December 15, 2005 
Brownfield Redevelopment Plan #4 submitted by TCF Bank for redevelopment of 1470 
Coolidge;  
 
WHEREAS, Superior Environmental has prepared a plan for environmental cleanup of former 
Harabedian Paving Company for the construction of a TCF Bank branch;  
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council finds this plan constitutes a public purpose in providing for 
environmental cleanup of a contaminated site and the alleviation of blight at this particular 
address. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FINDS Plan #4 does 
constitute a public purpose and APPROVES the Brownfield Redevelopment Plan to construct a 
TCF Bank branch on the former Harabedian site at 1470 Coolidge. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 27, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

 
C-3 Continuation of Public Hearing – Proposed Amendment to the Boundaries of the 

Downtown District of the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
 
Proposed Resolution – Version A 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council RECOMMENDS moving forward with the 
proposed amendments to the boundaries of the Downtown District of the Downtown 
Development Authority of the City of Troy and AUTHORIZES the City Administration to draft an 
ordinance to AMEND the boundaries of the Downtown Development Authority and PLACE on a 
future City Council meeting not less than 60 days after the public hearing. 
 
OR 
 
Proposed Resolution – Version B 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council REFER this matter to the Downtown 
Development Authority for their RECOMMENDATION on an amendment to the Downtown 
Development Plan Area boundaries. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
   

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 27, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of February 20, 
2006 and the Regular City Council Meeting of February 22, 2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 27, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory 
Committee; Historic District Commission; Liquor Advisory Committee; Municipal 
Building Authority; and Traffic Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/06 
 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 02/28/09 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 27, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3-Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Traffic Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Contract Ratification – Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) and City of 

Troy  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and TCOA for 
the period July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2008 is hereby RATIFIED by the City Council of the 
City of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final 
agreement. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 27, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

F-3 Contract Ratification – Troy Fire Staff Officers Association (TFSOA) and City of 
Troy 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and TFSOA for 
the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2009 is hereby RATIFIED by the City Council of the 
City of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final 
agreement. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
F-4 Contract Ratification – American Federation of State, County and Municipal 

Employees (AFSCME) and City of Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and AFSCME for 
the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2009 is hereby RATIFIED by the City Council of the 
City of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final 
agreement. 
 
Yes:  
No:  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Rezoning Request – East Side of Livernois, South of Wattles, Section 22 – R-1C to C-F 

(Z-713) – March 20, 2006 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
    

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 27, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Correspondence from Troy Chamber of Commerce President Michele Hodges 

Regarding Continuation of the Public Hearing on Excluding the Proposed Monarch 
Development from the DDA Boundaries 

 
J-7  Papadelis v. City of Troy 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 27, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e) and (h) and MCL 15.243, Pending Litigation: (1) Papadelis v. City 
of Troy and (2) Fehribach v. City of Troy, and as permitted by MCL 15.268 (a), Performance 
Evaluation of City Attorney, Lori Grigg Bluhm.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Tuesday, February 28, 2006 (Joint Troy Daze Advisory Committee) ....... Special City Council  
Monday, March 6, 2006............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 20, 2006........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 27, 2006........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 3, 2006 ............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 17, 2006 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 24, 2006 (Budget Study Session)....................... Regular City Council 
Monday, May 8, 2006................................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, May 15, 2006.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 22, 2006.............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



February 23, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance and Administration 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing - William Beaumont Hospital  
 
 
The Internal Revenue Code requires a public hearing before authorizing the issuance of 
bonds by a Hospital Authority in all jurisdictions benefiting from the issuance.  Since a 
portion of the bond issue will be used to refund bonds used to construct an addition to Troy 
Beaumont Hospital, we have been requested to hold a public hearing. 
 
It should be noted that approval of the issuance of bonds by the City of Troy for the benefit 
of the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority will not have any effect on the ability of 
the City of Troy to issue bonds or involve any liability to the City of Troy for the bonds.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\02.27.06 - Public Hearing - William Beaumont Hospital 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE ISSUANCE 
BY THE CITY OF ROYAL OAK HOSPITAL FINANCE AUTHORITY 

OF HOSPITAL REVENUE AND HOSPITAL REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL 

 

NOTICE IS GIVEN that the City Commission of the City of Royal Oak will hold a 

public hearing at 7:30 o’clock p.m., in the Commission Chambers of City Hall, 211 

Williams Street, Royal Oak, Michigan on the 20th day of February, 2006, that the City 

Council of the City of Sterling Heights will hold a public hearing at 7:30 o’clock p.m. in 

the City Hall Council Chambers, 40555 Utica Road, Sterling Heights, Michigan on the 

21st day of February, 2006, and that the City Council of the City of Troy will hold a public 

hearing at 7:30 o’clock p.m. in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, 

Troy, Michigan on the 27th day of February, 2006, each on the proposed issuance of 

hospital revenue and hospital revenue refunding bonds (the “Bonds”) in one or more 

series in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $235,000,000 by the City of Royal 

Oak Hospital Finance Authority to provide funds to loan to William Beaumont Hospital to 

be used by William Beaumont Hospital, together with other available funds, to (a) 

finance or refinance the costs of the acquisition; construction, renovation and equipping 

of the health care facilities described below (collectively, the “Projects”), (b) to refund 

the bonds described below (the “Prior Bonds”), (c) to pay a portion of the interest to 

accrue on the Bonds, (d) to fund a debt service reserve fund for the Bonds, and (e) to 

pay the costs of issuing the bonds. 

The Projects (a portion of which will be financed with the proceeds of the Bonds) 

consist of the following: (a) at a presently estimated cost of $125,210,699, the 

renovation of the north and central towers of the hospital facility of William Beaumont 



Hospital located at 3601 West Thirteen Mile Road, Royal Oak, Michigan (the “Royal 

Oak Facilities”) generally consisting of the renovation of medical care areas, the 

improvement of architectural, electrical and mechanical infrastructure of the hospital 

facility and the improvement of fire alarm and fire protection systems, (b) at a presently 

estimated cost of $26,271,345, the construction of an ambulatory care center on the 

hospital campus of William Beaumont Hospital located at 44300 Dequindre Road, 

Sterling Heights, Michigan (the “Sterling Heights Facility”). 

The Prior Bonds consist of the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 

Hospital Revenue and Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital) Series 1996I 

maturing on or after January 1, 2013. 

The proceeds of the Prior Bonds were loaned to William Beaumont Hospital and 

used by William Beaumont Hospital, together with other available funds, (a) to refund a 

portion of the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Hospital Revenue Bonds 

(William Beaumont Hospital), Series 1991D (the “Series 1991D Bonds”) the proceeds of 

which were used by William Beaumont Hospital (1) to construct a critical care tower and 

a four level addition to the hospital facility, related parking and a shipping and receiving 

facility, all at the Royal Oak Facilities, (2) to construct a six level addition to and 

renovation of the hospital facility of William Beaumont Hospital located at 44201 

Dequindre Road, Troy, Michigan (the “Troy Facilities”), (3) to pay a portion of the 

interest o the Series 1991D Bonds and (4) to pay costs of issuing the Series 1991D 

Bonds, and (b) to pay the costs of issuing the Prior Bonds. 

 2



The Royal Oak Facilities, the Sterling Heights Facilities and the Troy Facilities 

are owned and operated by William Beaumont Hospital, a Michigan nonprofit 

corporation. 

The public hearing will provide an opportunity for interested persons to be heard 

and communications in writing will be received and considered.  The hearing will 

provide the fullest opportunity for expression of opinion, for argument on the merits, and 

for introduction of documentary evidence pertinent to the proposed bond issue. 

Dated:  February 5, 2006 ___/s/ Don 
Johnson____________________ 

Chairperson, City of Royal Oak 
Hospital Finance Authority 
211 Williams Street 
Royal Oak, Michigan  48068 
(810) 546-6330 

 
AALIB:456315.3\006839-00008  

 3



campbellld
Text Box
C-02





















































































 
 
 
 February 20, 2006 
 
 
 TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
 FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

RE: Continuation of Public Hearing on Excluding the Proposed 
Monarch Development from the DDA Boundaries 

 
 
This is a continuation of the Public Hearing from October 24, 2005.  
Any final action (amendment to boundaries) cannot take place any 
earlier than 60 days after the conclusion of a Public Hearing, or in this 
case, April 28th (Friday) or May 1st (Monday) at a regular Council 
meeting  
 
Attached is a copy of the PowerPoint presentation I will make 
regarding the impact of removing the portion of the tax base from the 
Monarch project, which would currently be within the boundaries of 
the DDA tax increment financing area.  My presentation will focus on 
the primary issue of the business sector as a donor group relative to 
paying for municipal services and the residential sector as a consumer 
group.  As well, I have included background information covering 
issues such as bonding capacity, historic investments, and potential 
investment opportunities within the DDA. 
 
As always, feel free to call should you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
Cc: Downtown Development Authority 
   Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance 
 Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
 John Abraham, Traffic Engineer 
 Bob Bendzinski 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



Revenue Vs. Expense Chart

DDA: Base Taxes v. Service Costs

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

Base & Service Taxes

D
ol

la
rs

Series1 4,045,667 1,940,675 

Base Taxes Service Cost-Taxes

DDA: Base Taxes v. Service Costs

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

Base & Service Taxes

D
ol

la
rs

Series1 4,045,667 1,940,675 

Base Taxes Service Cost-Taxes



Commercial Donor / Residential User
Commercial/Industrial class of properties is
a ‘donor’ class of property

Summary of all of the data presented shows a 
Net Deficit in tax dollars paid by the Residential 
class
– Residential class of properties consumes $6,274,919 

more dollars of taxes for services than its contribution for 
the same

Summary shows a Net Overage in tax dollars 
paid by the Commercial / Industrial class
– Commercial/Industrial class of property pays $6,274,919 

more in taxes than the costs of the services it uses.
– to offset the usage by the Residential class amounts to 

$664,012,593 dollars of Taxable Value (($6,274,919 / 
9.45 mills) * 1,000). 

– Commercial/Industrial class is currently $521,499,630 
less in Taxable Value than the Residential class



PUD with High-End Residential –
The Future of DDA?

The Trump TowersThe Trump Towers



Debt Service Threshold

W/O Monarch W/Monarch Tax Rate $15.69 Debt Serv. % of Taxes
2006-07 239,616,442      239,616,442      3,759,582$         3,279,000$      87.22        

(% of Taxes 87.22)
2007-08 243,820,371      247,820,371      3,888,302$         3,281,000$      84.38        

(% of Taxes 85.77)
2008-09 248,262,244      268,762,244      4,216,880$         3,335,000$      79.09        

(% of Taxes 85.62)
2009-10 252,940,382      293,940,382      4,611,925$         3,375,000$      73.18        

(% of Taxes 85.04)
2010-11 257,853,243      300,083,243      4,708,306$         3,369,000$      71.55        

(% of Taxes 83.27)

TDDA Captured Taxable Value Projections
1/31/2006

Assumptions
W/O Monarch - 1.5% increase in real and 3% reduction in personal
W/Monarch - 12/31/06 4,000,000 TV; 12/31/07 20,500,000 TV; 12/31/08 

41,000,000 TV
Monarch - $90,000,000 MV (41,000,000 TDDA TV; 4,000,000 City TV)



Leveraging Additional Funds

Net New 
Taxable 

Value
DDA Mills Net New 

DDA Taxes
City Only 

Mills City Taxes County 
Only Mills

Leveraged 
Taxes

36,308,850 15.6865 $569,559 9.4500 $343,119 6.2365 $226,440

Leveraged Taxes from the Monarch Project



Expires 2018



Positive Externalities
Increase in property values City-wide as a 
result of being a destination City
Increase in jobs
Increase in property maintenance
Increase in quality of life for everyone; 
Community Center gets more than 600,000 
visits per year
Increase in mobility for all: 70,000+ vehicles 
per day on Big Beaver
Funding of Big Beaver corridor study
Value of board of directors



Redevelopment Opportunities

• Kmart
• Crooks to Alpine (including the Monarch)
• Burton Katzman Site 
• Southeast of National City building (Lowrey)
• North side of Big Beaver (Louis to Kilmer)
• Southeast corner of Big Beaver & Rochester
Full service restaurants in the parking lots
• Sheffield
• Troy Place
• SBC
• Troy Officecentre 

• Kmart
• Crooks to Alpine (including the Monarch)
• Burton Katzman Site 
• Southeast of National City building (Lowrey)
• North side of Big Beaver (Louis to Kilmer)
• Southeast corner of Big Beaver & Rochester
Full service restaurants in the parking lots
• Sheffield
• Troy Place
• SBC
• Troy Officecentre 



Graph with Monarch

DDA Base Taxes v. Service Costs w/Monarch

0
500,000

1,000,000
1,500,000
2,000,000
2,500,000
3,000,000
3,500,000
4,000,000
4,500,000

Base & Service Taxes

D
ol

la
rs

Series1 4,045,667 1,940,675 

Base Taxes Service Cost-Taxes



DDA Base Taxes and Cost of Service

0
500,000

1,000,000
1,500,000
2,000,000
2,500,000
3,000,000
3,500,000
4,000,000
4,500,000

19
93

19
94

19
95

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

Year

Ta
xe

s 
$

Base Taxes Cost of Services



DDA: Base Tax v. Service Cost 

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

9,000,000

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Year

Ta
xe

s 
$

Service Cost Base Taxes Base Plus City Tax Base Plus City & County Tax 

Tax 
capture for 

DDA 
projects

General fund 
capture of 

DDA district
Somerset North Somerset North -- $17.1 M for parking structure (1994)$17.1 M for parking structure (1994)

Big Beaver Road Improvements Big Beaver Road Improvements -- $ 17.4 M (1994 and 2001)$ 17.4 M (1994 and 2001)

Rochester Road Improvements Rochester Road Improvements -- $ 2 M (1999)$ 2 M (1999)

Troy Community Center Troy Community Center -- $13.7 M (2002)$13.7 M (2002)



DDA Historical Projects



For More Information…
Doug Smith, ‘Information for Council Public 
Hearing on DDA Boundaries’, October 19, 2005
Robert Bendzinski, ‘Impact of Reducing the 
Boundaries of the Troy Downtown Development 
Authority’, October 20, 2005
Nino Licari, ‘Analysis of Taxes Paid’, November 
22, 2005
Brian Murphy, ‘Cost for Services, Residential v 
Commercial’, October 18, 2005
Nino Licari, ‘Estimate of Taxes Generated by 
Proposed Monarch Project’, July 14, 2005



October 19, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - Information for Council Public Hearing on DDA 

Boundaries 
 
 
A number of issues were raised at the Monday night, October 17th Joint 
Council and DDA meeting and at the Wednesday, October 20th DDA 
meeting.  Following is simply a list of the issues that may help Council as 
they deliberate on considering boundary changes for the DDA. 
 
 
Purpose: 
 
The underlying purpose of the DDA is simply to accelerate the pace and 
amount of growth in a principal business district by investing in public 
infrastructure, the increased tax revenue from the district for a period not to 
exceed 30 years. 
 
In Troy’s case, the Big Beaver Corridor is the primary business district and is 
critical to attracting companies to Troy even though they end up in the 
Northfield business district or along Maple and Stephenson Highway. 
 
 
Authority for DDA: 
 

• The DDA is a creation of Troy’s ordinance Number 78, which was 
adopted on July 12, 1993. 

• Troy’s ordinance directs you to the state statute (MCL 125.1651 et. 
Seq.), which was adopted in 1975. 

• The state statute grants broad powers to the DDA Board. 
• There is a termination provision in Ordinance 78-December31, 2024 

OR upon the retirement of all bonded debt, whichever occurs last. 
 
 
Ordinance/Determination of Necessity; Purpose: 
 
“An act to provide for the establishment of a downtown development 
authority; to prescribe its power and duties; to correct and prevent 



deterioration in business districts; to encourage historic preservation; to 
authorize the acquisition and disposal of interests in real and personal 
property; to authorize the creation and implementation of development plans 
in the districts; to promote the economic growth of the districts; to create a 
board; to prescribe its powers and duties; to authorize the levy and collection 
of taxes; to authorize the issuance of bonds and other evidences of 
indebtedness; to authorize the use of tax increment financing; to reimburse 
downtown development authorities for certain losses of tax increment 
revenues; and to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state officials.”  
(Troy Ordinance #78) 
 
 
Powers of the DDA: 
 
MCL 125.1657 – the Board may: 

• Prepare an analysis of economic changes in the downtown district. 
• Stud the impact of metro growth on the downtown district. 
• Plan and propose the construction, renovation, repair, remodeling, 

rehabilitation, restoration, preservation or reconstruction of a PUBLIC 
facility, an existing building or a multiple-family dwelling when 
necessary to aid in the economic growth of the district. 

• Plan, propose and implement an improvement to a public facility 
within the development area for a barrier free design. 

• Develop long range plans designed to halt the deterioration of property 
values in the downtown district & to promote growth of the district – 
and to take steps to persuade property owners to implement the 
plans. 

• Implement any plan of development in accordance with the purposes 
of the act and the powers granted by the act. 

• Contract for the exercise of powers and performance of duties, 
• Acquire land (eminent domain) when reasonably necessary to achieve 

the purposes of the act. 
• Improve land and construct, reconstruct, rehabilitate and restore, 

preserve, equip, improve, maintain, repair, and operate any building 
and any appurtenances thereto, within the downtown district (includes 
multiple family dwellings) for any public or private person or 
corporation. 

• Fix, charge, collect fees, rents, and charges for the use of any building 
or property under its control and pledge the fees, rents, etc. for 
payment of revenue bonds issued by the authority. 

• Lease any building or property. 
• Accept grants and donations of property. 
• Acquire and construct public facilities. 

 



Leverage: 
 
The DDA district is permitted to collect tax increment from the County and 
Community College so the DDA leverages 40% of its total captured taxes for 
public infrastructure from other than city sources, benefiting the general 
capital budget of the city. 
 
 
Membership: 
 
The members are appointed by the Mayor with concurrence by City Council. 
 
When creating the Troy Downtown Development Authority, section 7 of 
Troy's ordinance required the Mayor to appoint the Board of Directors, 
subject to Council approval.  The 13 Member Board of Directors includes the 
Mayor and twelve other members, each serving a term of four years.  A 
majority of the Directors are required to have an interest in property located 
in the Downtown District.  
 
In addition, if the DDA District has 100 or more residents in it, then at least 
one of the 13 Directors shall be a resident of the DDA district.  If and when 
residences are constructed in the TDAA, then one of the residents would be 
appointed as a Director of the TDAA, in accordance with the ordinance and 
also state statute.  In addition, the statutory requirement to create a 
Development Area Citizens Council when there are 100 or more residents in 
a development area would also need to be satisfied.   This Development Area 
Citizens Council would be a separate entity of up to 9 members who are 
representative of the development area, and would serve as an advisory 
body to the City Council and also the TDDA in the adoption of development 
or tax increment financing plans.  
 
 
Budget: 
 
The DDA budget is approved annually by the City Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Investments: 
           1        2 
1994  Somerset North parking deck    $17.1m  ($22m) 
   
1994  Big Beaver reconstruction Cunningham  $  3.1m   ($17 m)  

to I-75 
 

1999 Rochester Road expansion – I-75 to   $  5.6m  ($18.7 m) 
              Torpey  
 

2001    Big Beaver I-75 – Rochester Road   $14.3m  ($15.9m) 
 
2002  Troy Community Center     $13.7m  ($26.5m) 
  
   
MEGA Local Matches: 
 
2000  Kmart Data Center 
2002  Axel Tech 
2002  HTC Global 
 
 
Ongoing: Maintenance of Big Beaver Corridor – Cunningham to I-75 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.  DDA contribution 
2.  Total project cost 
 
G\DOUG MISC\CORRES 2005\DDA Boundaries Memo to JS 10-19-05 

























TROY DOWNTOWN 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  

Legal Update- Presented to the Troy 
DDA  



Authority for DDA

• The DDA is a creation of Troy’s 
ordinance Number 78, which was 
adopted on July 12, 1993.  

• There is a termination provision in 
Ordinance 78- December 31, 2024 OR 
upon the retirement of all bonded debt, 
whichever occurs last.     



Determination of Necessity; Purpose
• “The City Council hereby determines that it is 

necessary for the best interests of the public 
to create a public body corporate which shall 
operate to halt property value deterioration, 
eliminate the causes of that deterioration, 
increase property tax valuation where 
possible in the business district of the City 
and promote economic growth…”

(Section 2, Ordinance 78, City of Troy)



Determination of Necessity; Purpose

• The formation of the DDA was based on 
declining assessments in the DDA 
district between 1991 and 1994.  The 
total dollar reduction was approximately 
8% of the tax base- and covered 
approximately 39 assessable properties. 



Ordinance’s Enumeration of Powers
• Troy’s Ordinance specifies that the 

TDDA “possesses all of the powers 
necessary to carry out the purposes of 
its incorporation as provided by this 
ordinance and Act 197.” (MCL 125.1651 
et. seq.) 

• The TIF plans also grant broad 
authority for the DDA to implement the 
development plans. 



Statute’s Enumeration of Powers
• Employ and fix the compensation of a CEO/Director 

(non-board member), subject to the approval of City 
Council.

• Employ and fix the compensation of a treasurer and 
secretary and to retain legal counsel or other 
necessary personnel (by-laws encourage the use of 
appropriate City staff).

• Prepare an analysis of economic changes taking 
place in the DDA.

• To study and analyze the impact of metropolitan 
growth upon the DDA.



Statute’s Enumeration of Powers
• To upgrade a public facility to meet state 

mandated barrier free design requirements.
• To make public facility improvements, 

consistent with a TDDA approved plan, that 
aids in the economic growth of the DDA, 
when such plan requires construction of a 
public facility or multiple family dwelling unit, 
or the repair, restoration or preservation of 
existing buildings or property.



Statute’s Enumeration of Powers
• Public facility is defined as:  

– Street; Plaza; Pedestrian mall
– Improvements to any of the above- including 

street furniture & beautification
– Park
– Parking facility
– Recreational facility
– Right of Way
– Structures
– Waterways, bridges, lakes, ponds, canals
– Utility lines or pipes



Statute’s Enumeration of Powers

•Public Facilities must be 
designed and dedicated to use 
by the public generally, or used 
by a public agency.



Statute’s Enumeration of Powers
• To develop long range plans designed to halt 

the deterioration of property values in the 
DDA and to promote economic growth in the 
DDA, and to take steps necessary to 
persuade individual DDA property owners to 
implement the plans.

• To implement any plan of development, or 
enter into any necessary contracts to further 
the purposes of the Act, as long as the 
proposed action isn’t specifically prohibited. 



Statute’s Enumeration of Powers
• To purchase or condemn property or acquire 

licenses or easements in property or to sell or 
lease property if reasonably necessary to 
achieve the purposes of the act.

• To improve or equip any building or land in 
the DDA (including multiple family dwellings) 
for the use of any person or corporation or 
public entity. 

• To charge for the use of any building or 
property under DDA control.



Statute’s Enumeration of Powers
• To accept grants and donations of property 

or labor or other things of value from public 
or private sources. 

• To acquire and construct public facilities.
• To make and enter any contracts with 

consultants or personnel that are necessary 
to perform its duties or exercise its powers, 
with approval from Troy City Council.



Statute’s Enumeration of Powers

• To borrow money and issue negotiable 
revenue bonds (either with or without 
full faith and credit of City- in City’s sole 
discretion)

• If approved by the Troy City Council- to 
levy an ad valorem tax on the real and 
personal property in the DDA- limited to 
two mills.



Statute’s Enumeration of Powers

• Through the tax increment financing 
plan, to collect taxes on the increase in 
taxable value over the base year (1993) 
for any DDA properties.  The taxes on 
the amount up to the base amount are 
distributed to the municipality and other 
taxing units. 



Restrictions for Troy’s DDA
• Troy can establish only one authority (post 

1985). The boundaries of the DDA must be 
contiguous.

• Any amendment or alteration to the 
boundaries of a DDA must be accomplished 
by the same means used to initially create 
the DDA.  The primary use of the DDA 
property should be business use. 

• If 100 persons reside in the DDA, then one 
resident of the district shall serve on the DDA 
Board. 



Restrictions for Troy’s DDA

• All DDA members serve without 
compensation. 

• All DDA members are required to 
submit to the constitutional oath of 
office, and can be removed for cause.

• With the exception of the Mayor, all 
other DDA board members must not 
hold an elected office. 



Restrictions for Troy’s DDA
• DDA activities shall be financed only with 

donations to the DDA, money borrowed by 
the DDA, revenues from the sale or lease of 
land owned by the DDA, proceeds of the tax 
increment plan, or a special assessment 
district, or revenue bonds, or any other 
source approved by Troy City Council.  The 
City of Troy shall not be obligated to finance 
any of the DDA activities (or to pledge full 
faith and credit for a bond transaction), 
unless expressly authorized by City Council. 



Restrictions for Troy’s DDA
• At least a majority of the DDA directors must 

have a property interest in the DDA.
• An authority that has completed the purposes 

for which it was organized shall be dissolved 
by ordinance of the governing body (as long 
as there are no outstanding debt obligations).  
At dissolution, the property and assets of the 
DDA then belong to the municipality.



Restrictions for Troy’s DDA
• The TDDA must annually report to City 

Council and the State Tax Commission on the 
status of the Tax Increment Financing 
accounts.  

• The State Tax Commission has the authority 
to compel enforcement of the act

• City Council approves the budget- which is 
then adopted by the TDDA



Restrictions for Troy’s DDA
• The tax increment revenues shall be 

expended only pursuant to the 
approved tax increment financing plan.
– Under the plan- Marketing and promotional 

costs may be financed solely from 
revenues received by the DDA. 

– Business recruitment and retention, and 
assistance in promoting and conducting 
events in the DDA 



DDA Statutory Limitations 
• Expenditures must be for public 

purposes.  The Michigan AG has 
strongly cautioned against the 
expenditure of DDA funds for the 
benefit of private parties. 

• All DDA meetings shall comply with the 
Open Meetings Act, and all documents 
are subject to the Freedom of 
Information Act (even e-mails).































Assessment Year - 2005 
 

Analysis of 
Taxes Paid 

And 
City Services Used 

 
 

A Comparison of the Residential and 
Commercial/Industrial Classes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor 
11/22/05 



 1

Assessment Year – 2005 
 

Analysis of Taxes Paid and City Services Used 
 

A Comparison of the Residential and Commercial/Industrial Classes 
 
 
 
   In order to determine how each class of property consumes, or uses, City 
services, and the proportionate share of the costs of those services to each class 
of property, a detailed analysis of the Assessment and Tax Rolls is necessary. 
 
   Certain assumptions must be made to make a usable analysis of this data.  
These assumptions will be explained as they are made.  In all instances, any 
assumption made will be conservative in nature, and no favoritism will be shown 
to either class of property.   
 
   As this comparison is based upon City services, and the direct cost of these 
services to property owners in the City of Troy, only City taxes will be used as the 
cost basis.  All other revenues that make up the total City budget cannot be 
directly linked to individual properties, and as such are not used (revenue 
sharing, sales and use taxes, grants, Federal highway monies, etc.).  
 
   All data used for this analysis is from the 2005 calendar year.  The exception is 
the projected budgeted amounts, which have a fiscal year from July 1, 2005, 
through June 30, 2006. 
 
   The data being analyzed is summarized on ten (10) charts in this report.  
Source data is listed at the bottom of each chart, where pertinent. 



Chart #1 – Detail of Taxes Paid 
 
   The first chart details the City taxes paid by Class of Property in four (4) 
categories:  Overall, by Acreage, by Square Feet of Building Area, and by Parcel 
count. 
 
   As shown, the current Taxable Value and Taxes Paid is detailed by a 54.95% 
ratio of Residential to the 45.05% Commercial/Industrial Class (variously labeled 
Commercial/Industrial, Comm/Ind, and C/I on the charts). 
 
   There are 19,881.14 acres of land in the City of Troy.  74.25%, or 14,762.08 
acres of this land has a Residential use.  25.75%, or 5,119.06 acres are used for 
Commercial/Industrial use.  Taxes per acre are equal to $1,852 for Residential, 
and $4,378 for Commercial/Industrial. 
 
   There are 107,415,847 square feet of improved structures in the City of Troy.  
The percentage split for the two classes is very close, with 49.27% (52,923,461 
square feet) being Residential, and 50.73% (54,492,386 square feet) being 
Commercial/Industrial. 
 
   There are 34,501 parcels of Property in the City of Troy.  77.90% of them, or 
26,876, are Residential in nature.  22.10%, or 7,625 of the parcels are 
Commercial/Industrial.  Of the 7,625 Commercial/Industrial parcels 1,917 are 
Real Property parcels, and 5,708 are Personal Property. 
 



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

Description 2005 Value % City Taxes Ratio to Each
Residential Taxable Value 2,892,925,590 54.95 27,338,147 1.22 : 1.00
Comm/Ind Taxable Value 2,371,425,960 45.05 22,405,975 .8196 : 1.00

Total Taxable Value 5,264,351,550 100.00 49,748,122

Description 2005 Acres % Taxes/Acre Ratio to Each
Residential Acres 14,762.08 74.25 1,852 .4230 : 1.00
Comm/Ind Acres 5,119.06 25.75 4,378 2.36 : 1.00

Total Acres 19,881.14 100.00 2,502

Description 2005 Sq Ft % Taxes/SqFt Ratio to Each
Residential Square Footage 52,923,461 49.27 0.5166 1.26 : 1.00
Comm/Ind Square Footage 54,492,386 50.73 0.4112 .8000 : 1.00

Total Square Footage 107,415,847 100.00 0.4631

Description 2005 Count % Taxes/Parcel Ratio to Each
Residential Parcels 26,876 77.90 1,017 .3462 : 1.00

Comm/Ind Parcels (+ 5,708 Pers) 7,625 22.10 2,938 2.89 : 1.00
Total Parcels 34,501 100.00 1,442

Source:  2005 Starting Warrant

Source: City of Troy Planning Department

Source: City of Troy Assessment Records

Source: City of Troy Assessment Records

Chart #1
Detail of Taxes Paid - Overall, by Acres, by Square Feet & by Parcel Count

Chart #1



Roadways 
 
 
   There are 325.04 miles of public roads in the City of Troy.  Of this mileage, 
269.27 miles are considered Local Roads, and 55.77 miles are considered Major 
Roads. 
 
*** Assumption:  While the concentration of Commercial/Industrial property does 
necessitate the need for additional width on some of the Major Roads, 
Residential property owners must still be able to traverse the area.  Therefore, a 
division of the use and benefit is necessary. 
 
   Census data estimates that 120,000 people work in the city of Troy, and 85,000 
people live here.  Of the 120,000 that work here, 8,000 are also residents of the 
City.  This translates into a ratio of 56.85% of the working population (112,000) 
using the major roads, and 43.12% of the Residents (85,000) using the major 
roads.  
 
   Using the above calculation, 293.33 miles of roadway are considered 
Residential (90.24%), and 24.06 miles of roadway are considered 
Commercial/Industrial (9.76%). 
 



 4

 
Impervious Surfaces 

 
   It is necessary to determine the amount of impervious surfaces in the City of 
Troy to be able to draw some conclusions concerning the Drains necessary to 
handle water runoff created by these surfaces.    
 
   Residential impervious surfaces are comprised of the roofs, driveways, local 
roads, the Residential portion of major roads, and the pro-rata portion of the 
sidewalks in the City of Troy. 
 
   (There are 500 miles of sidewalks in the City.  A four (4) foot width was used to 
calculate the square footage, and the same ratio of local to major roads was 
used to determine the area assignments by class). 
 
   The Residential class has 100,7288,715 square feet of impervious surfaces, 
which is 40.91% of the total area of imperviousness. 
 
   ***Assumption:  Churches, schools, and other exempt properties are not 
included in this calculation, as no data is kept on them in the Assessment 
records.  These properties are considered Residential by zoning and use, and 
would tend to move this ratio more towards a 50/50 mix.  This would trend the 
Drain service issue towards a Residential benefit. 
 
   The Commercial/Industrial class of property has 145,487,683 square feet of 
impervious surfaces, or 59.09% of the total area.  This is comprised of roofs, 
paving, the C/I portion of major roads, and the pro-rata share of the sidewalk 
area. 
 



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

Description Count % Ratio to Each
Work in City 120,000

Work/Live in City 8,000
Net Work in City 112,000 56.85

Live in City 85,000 43.12
Total Road Use 197,000 100.00

Description Miles % Ratio to Each
Local Roads 269.27
Major Roads 55.77
Total Roads 325.04 100.00

Residential Local Roads 269.27
Res. Major Roads (2 lanes) 24.06

Total Residential Roads 293.33 90.24  
C/I Major Roads (2 lanes) 31.71 9.76  

Total Roads 325.04 100.00

Description Square Feet % Ratio to Each
Residential Colonial Roofs 13,230,865

Residential Other Roofs 26,461,731
Residential Driveways 14,513,040

Local Roads 31,278,403
Sidewalks 9,653,952

Major Roads (2 Lanes) 5,590,724
Total Residential Surfaces 100,728,715 40.91 .69237 : 1.00

Comm/Ind Roofs 31,202,014  
Comm/Ind Paving 106,013,859

Sidewalks 906,048
Major Roads (2 Lanes) 7,365,762

Total Comm/Ind Surfaces 145,487,683 59.09 1.44 : 1.00
Total All Surfaces 246,216,398 100.00

Source: City of Troy Asessment Records, Engineering Department, DPW

Chart #2
Roadways and Impervious Surfaces

Impervious Surface Area

Source:  City of Troy Engineering Department

Chart #2



 5

Chart #3 – Detail of City Tax Levies by Type 
 
   The City millage rate is comprised of levies for Operating, Capital projects, 
Refuse, and Debt service. 
 
   All of these various millages follow the 54.95% Residential, 45.05% 
Commercial/Industrial pro-ration determined by the 2005 Taxable Values on the 
City Assessment and Tax rolls. 
 

Chart #4 – Police and Fire Service 
 
   The Police Service ratio is determined by excluding traffic stops, as a 
Residential or Commercial/Industrial stop cannot be broken out of the reports.  Of 
the 24,538 calls for service, 13,300 were Residential calls (54.20%) and 11,238 
calls were of a Commercial/Industrial nature (45.8%).  This pro-ration is very 
close to the actual taxes paid, of 54.95% and 45.05%, respectively. 
 
   Of the 296 Fire calls for service reported, 229 were to Residential properties 
(77.36%) and 67 were to Commercial/Industrial properties (22.64%). 
 

Chart #5 – Detail of All Tax Levies 
 
   As an informational item, Chart #5 details all of the taxes levied and collected 
by the City of Troy.  The detail shows that the City Taxes account for 
approximately 24.73% of a property’s total taxes.  (This percentage would be 
slightly lower for a Non-Homestead property, and slightly higher for a Principal 
Residence). 
 
   County Taxes account for 11.90% of a tax bill.  County School Taxes are an 
additional 11.54%.  The total levy for County taxes is then 23.44%. 
 
   Local School Taxes are 51.84% of the tax bill.  Local School taxes and County 
School taxes account for 63.38% of total taxes. 
 

Chart #6 – Detail of Budgeted Tax Levies by Department 
 
   Departmental budgets are not solely funded by taxes.  Since this analysis is of 
the cost of services by taxes paid, budgeted amounts are corrected to the tax 
contribution only.  All other revenue sources are removed. 



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

Description Taxes % Ratio to Each
Res Operating Taxes 18,804,016 54.95 1.22 : 1.00

Comm/Ind Operating Taxes 15,414,269 45.05 .8198 : 1.00
Total Operating Taxes 34,218,285 100.00

Description Taxes % Ratio to Each
Res Capital Taxes 4,686,539 54.95 1.22 : 1.00

Comm/Ind Capital Taxes 3,841,710 45.05 .8198 : 1.00
Total Capital Taxes 8,528,249 100.00

Description Taxes % Ratio to Each
Residential Refuse Taxes 2,401,128 54.95 1.22 : 1.00
Comm/Ind Refuse Taxes 1,968,284 45.05 .8198 : 1.00

Total Refuse Taxes 4,369,412 100.00

Description Taxes % Ratio to Each
Res Debt Taxes 1,446,463 54.95 1.22 : 1.00

Comm/Ind Debt Taxes 1,185,713 45.05 .8198 : 1.00
Total Debt Taxes 2,632,176 100.00

Source: 2005 Starting Warrant and LT-1

Source: 2005 Starting Warrant and LT-1

Source: 2005 Starting Warrant and LT-1

Chart #3

Source: 2005 Starting Warrant and LT-1

Chart #3
Detail of City Tax Levies by Type



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

Description  % of Calls Ratio to Each
Residential Police Service 13,300 54.20 1.18 : 1.00
Comm/Ind Police Service 11,238 45.80 .845 : 1.00
Total Police Service (Structure) 24,538 100.00

Description  % of Calls Ratio to Each
Residential Fire Runs 229 77.36 3.42 : 1.00
Comm/Ind Fire Runs 67 22.64 .2929 : 1.00

Total Fire Runs 296 100.00

Chart #4

Source:  City of Troy Fire Department

Source:  City of Troy Police Department

Chart #4
Detail of Police/Fire Service



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

Description  % % %
City Taxes 45,503,676

From DDA Base 4,056,682
From TBRA Base 51,236

From SmartZone Base 136,528
Total City Taxes 49,748,122 22.58 City Tax Total

DDA Taxes 3,695,145 1.68 24.73
Brownfield Taxes 810,756 0.37  
SmartZone Taxes 212,602 0.10  

Oakland County Taxes 23,086,284 10.48 County Tax Total
Transportation Taxes 3,127,508 1.42 11.90

Intermediate School Taxes 17,571,141 7.97 County School Total
Community College Taxes 7,872,820 3.57 11.54

State Education Taxes 31,586,109 14.33 Local School Total
School Operating Taxes 45,362,851 20.59 51.84

School Debt Taxes 21,790,454 9.89  All School Total
School Supplemental Taxes 15,490,050 7.03  63.38

Total Taxes 220,353,842 100.00
Source:  2005 Starting Warrant

Detail of All Tax Levies
Chart #5

Chart #5



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

Description Budget Multiplier From Taxes % of Total
Police 22,600,000 0.572 12,927,200 37.60

Parks & Rec 8,500,000 0.572 4,862,000 14.14
Streets & Drains 5,300,000 0.572 3,031,600 8.82
Library/Museum 5,000,000 0.572 2,860,000 8.32

Finance 4,700,000 0.572 2,688,400 7.82
Fire 4,100,000 0.572 2,345,200 6.82

Engineering 3,000,000 0.572 1,716,000 4.99
General Government 2,700,000 0.572 1,544,400 4.49
Building Department 2,100,000 0.572 1,201,200 3.49

Council/Executive 2,100,000 0.572 1,201,200 3.49
Total General Fund 60,100,000 34,377,200 100.00

Description Budget Multiplier From Taxes % of Total
Police 316,010 0.333 1,051,231 11.73
Fire 487,000 0.333 162,171 1.81

DPW general & 4 Add'l 540,000 0.333 179,820 2.01
Major Roads 7,760,000 0.333 2,584,080 28.83
Local Roads 2,813,000 0.333 936,729 10.45
Sidewalks 1,000,000 0.333 333,000 3.71

Drains 2,270,920 0.333 756,216 8.44
Parks & Rec general & 2 Add'l 937,400 0.333 312,154 3.48

Park Development 1,501,000 0.333 499,833 5.58
Subdivision Improvement 2,000,000 0.333 666,000 7.43

Library/Museum 543,000 0.333 180,819 2.02
General Administration 3,911,000 0.333 1,302,363 14.53

Total Capital Fund 24,079,330 8,964,416 100.00

Description Budget Multiplier From Taxes % of Total
Refuse 4,525,650 1.00 4,525,650 100.00

Description Budget Multiplier From Taxes % of Total
Proposal A - Streets 788,640 0.877806 692,273 27.97

Proposal B - Public Safety 1,316,720 0.877806 1,155,825 46.70
Proposal C - Recreational 714,170 0.877806 626,902 25.33

Total Debt Fund 2,819,530 2,475,000 100.00
Source:  City of Troy 2005 - 2006 Annual Budget

Source:  City of Troy 2005 - 2006 Annual Budget

General Fund

Capital Fund

Refuse Fund
$4,525,650  ALL of which is Tax Revenue (No Multiplier)

Debt Fund

Source:  City of Troy 2005 - 2006 Annual Budget

Chart #6

$2,819,530, of which $2,475,000 is Tax Revenue (.877806 Multiplier)

Chart #6

$24,079,330, of which $8,019,000 is Tax Revenue (.333 Multiplier)

Source:  City of Troy 2005 - 2006 Annual Budget

$60,100,000, of which $34,377,200 is Tax Revenue (.572 Multiplier)

Detail of Budgeted Tax Levies by Department



Chart #7 – Summary of Taxes Budgeted to Departments by Property Class 
 
   Using the Taxes per Department from Chart #6, and ratios of Residential to 
Commercial/Industrial use established from Charts # 1 – 5, Departmental 
Budgeted amounts from taxes are pro-rated to the user of the service by class of 
property. 
 
   The Police ratio is established at 54.2% to 45.8%, Residential to 
Commercial/Industrial. 
    
   The General Government tax pro-ration follows the actual taxes paid as 
established by the 2005 Taxable Values for these properties. 
 
***Assumption:  Per the Financial Services Director, the cost of General 
Government is the same to all properties.  No one class requires any more 
General Government service than another. 
 
   The DPW account is made up of the eight (8) separate budget lines listed.   
The overall ratio for the DPW account is 60.56% Residential and 39.44% 
Commercial/Industrial.  
 
   The DPW breakdown for Residential to Commercial/Industrial is 90.24% to 
9.76% for roadways based on usage previously established.  Drains are divided 
40.91% to 59.09% based on impervious surfaces by class.  Capital costs are set 
at 54.95% to 45.05% as these items are a direct calculation from the ratio of 
taxes paid by class at the headquarters.  Major roads Capital funds are at the 
43.12% to 56.85% ratio established by use, as are the Local roads Capital funds, 
Sidewalk Capital funds, and Drains Capital funds.  Major Street Debt funds are 
also assigned in the same ratio as established by use.   
 
   Parks and Recreation has many activities and services that are paid for directly 
by the users.  The measurement of services used compared to taxes paid does 
not account for any self supporting services.  The usage per class estimate for 
Parks and Recreation is 79% Residential property and 21% 
Commercial/Industrial. 
 
   The Refuse account is used 100% by the Residential class.  While the 
Commercial/Industrial Real and Personal Property parcels pay a Refuse millage 
and tax, there is no use, nor benefit to the properties. 
 
    As previously noted, the Fire Department taxes would be split on the 77.36% 
Residential to 22.64% Commercial/Industrial pro-ration. 
 
 
 
 



   Per the Library Director, there are 50,000 library card holders in the City of 
Troy.  Non-residents card holders (people who work in the City, but do not live 
here) have 142 library cards.  This is 2.8 tenths of 1% of the total library cards.  
The tax split for the Library is then 99.72% Residential to .28% 
Commercial/Industrial. 
 
   The Subdivision Improvement account is used 100% by the Residential class 
of properties.       
 



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind
Police (General) 12,927,200 54.2 / 45.8 7,006,542 5,920,658
Police (Capital) 1,051,231 54.2 / 45.8 569,767 481,464
Police (Debt 1/2) 577,913 54.2 / 45.8 313,229 264,684

Police 14,556,344 54.2 / 45.8 7,889,538 6,666,806  
 

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind
General Admin (General) 1,544,400 54.95 / 45.05 848,648 695,752
Council/Exec (General) 1,201,200 54.95 / 45.05 660,059 541,141
Finance (General) 2,688,400 54.95 / 45.05 1,477,276 1,211,124
Engineering (General) 1,716,000 54.95 / 45.05 942,942 773,058
Building Dept (General) 1,201,200 54.95 / 45.05 660,059 541,141
General Admin (Capital) 1,302,363 54.95 / 45.05 715,649 586,714

General Government 9,653,563 54.95 / 45.05 5,304,633 4,348,930

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind
Streets (General) 2,022,077 90.24 / 9.76 1,824,722 197,355
Drains (General) 1,009,523 40.91 / 59.09 412,996 596,527
DPW (Capital) 179,820 54.95 / 45.05 98,811 81,009
Major Roads (Capital) 2,584,080 43.12 / 56.85 1,114,255 1,469,825
Local Roads (Capital) 936,729 100.0 / 0 936,729 0
Sidewalks (Capital) 333,000 43.12 / 56.85 143,590 189,410
Drains (Capital) 756,216 43.12 / 56.85 326,080 430,136
Streets (Debt) Major 692,273 43.12 / 56.85 298,508 393,765

DPW 8,513,718 60.56 / 39.44 5,155,691 3,358,027

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind
Parks & Rec (General) 4,862,000 79 / 21 3,840,980 1,021,020
Parks & Rec (Capital) 811,987 79 / 21 641,470 170,517
Parks & Rec (Debt) 626,902 79 / 21 495,253 131,649

Parks & Recreation 6,300,889 79 / 21 4,977,703 1,323,186
 

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind
Refuse (Refuse) 4,525,650 100.0 / 0 4,525,650 0

Refuse 4,525,650 100.0 / 0 4,525,650 0

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind
Fire (General) 2,345,200 77.36 / 22.64 1,814,247 530,953
Fire (Capital) 162,171 77.36 / 22.64 125,455 36,716
Fire (Debt 1/2) 577,913 77.36 / 22.64 447,074 130,839

Fire 3,085,284 77.36 / 22.64 2,386,776 698,508

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind
Library/Museum (General) 2,860,000 99.72 / .28 2,851,992 8,008
Library/Museum (Capital) 180,819 99.72 / .28 180,313 506

Library/Museum 3,040,819 99.72 / .28 3,032,305 8,514

Chart #7 (page 1 of 2)
50,000 cardholders, 142 issued to people working in the City

Summary of Taxes Budgeted to Departments by Property Class
(Page 1 of 2)

Chart #7



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind
Subdivision Improvement (Cap'l) 666,000 100.0 / 0 666,000 0

Subdivision Improvement 666,000 100.0 / 0 666,000 0

Chart #7 (page 2 of 2)

Chart #7

(Page 2 of 2)
Summary of Taxes Budgeted to Departments



13.4% Total 22.7% Total 25.2% Total 17.5% Total
2.72% Cost 4.61% Cost 5.12% Cost 3.55% Cost

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind Acres Sq Ft Parcels Taxes
Police (General) 12,927,200 54.2 / 45.8 7,006,542 5,920,658 161,042 272,942 303,138 210,183
Police (Capital) 1,051,231 54.2 / 45.8 569,767 481,464 13,096 22,195 24,651 17,092
Police (Debt 1/2) 577,913 54.2 / 45.8 313,229 264,684 7,199 12,202 13,552 9,396

Police 14,556,344 54.2 / 45.8 7,889,538 6,666,806  
 13.4% Total 22.7% Total 25.2% Total 17.5% Total

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind Acres Sq Ft Parcels Taxes
General Admin (General) 1,544,400 54.95 / 45.05 848,648 695,752 93,231 157,936 175,330 121,757
Council/Exec (General) 1,201,200 54.95 / 45.05 660,059 541,141 72,513 122,839 136,368 94,700
Finance (General) 2,688,400 54.95 / 45.05 1,477,276 1,211,124 162,291 274,925 305,203 211,947
Engineering (General) 1,716,000 54.95 / 45.05 942,942 773,058 103,590 175,484 194,811 135,285
Building Dept (General) 1,201,200 54.95 / 45.05 660,059 541,141 72,513 122,839 136,368 94,700
General Admin (Capital) 1,302,363 54.95 / 45.05 715,649 586,714 78,620 133,184 147,852 102,675

General Government 9,653,563 54.95 / 45.05 5,304,633 4,348,930

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind Acres Sq Ft Parcels Taxes
Streets (General) 2,022,077 90.24 / 9.76 1,824,722 197,355 26,446 44,800 49,733 34,537
Drains (General) 1,009,523 40.91 / 59.09 412,996 596,527 79,935 135,412 150,325 104,392
DPW (Capital) 179,820 54.95 / 45.05 98,811 81,009 10,855 18,389 20,414 14,177
Major Roads (Capital) 2,584,080 43.12 / 56.85 1,114,255 1,469,825 196,957 333,650 370,396 257,219
Local Roads (Capital) 936,729 100.0 / 0 936,729 0 0 0 0 0
Sidewalks (Capital) 333,000 43.12 / 56.85 143,590 189,410 25,381 42,996 47,731 33,147
Drains (Capital) 756,216 43.12 / 56.85 326,080 430,136 57,638 97,641 108,394 75,274
Streets (Debt) Major 692,273 43.12 / 56.85 298,508 393,765 52,765 89,385 99,229 68,909

DPW 8,513,718 60.56 / 39.44 5,155,691 3,358,027

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind Acres Sq Ft Parcels Taxes
Parks & Rec (General) 4,862,000 79 / 21 3,840,980 1,021,020 136,817 231,772 257,297 178,679
Parks & Rec (Capital) 811,987 79 / 21 641,470 170,517 22,849 38,707 42,970 29,840
Parks & Rec (Debt) 626,902 79 / 21 495,253 131,649 17,641 29,884 33,176 23,039

Parks & Recreation 6,300,889 79 / 21 4,977,703 1,323,186

Chart #7
Summary of Taxes Budgeted to Departments by Property Class

Equals 20.3% of Police Times % of Total



 
Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind Acres Sq Ft Parcels Taxes

Refuse (Refuse) 4,525,650 100.0 / 0 4,525,650 0 0 0 0 0
Refuse 4,525,650 100.0 / 0 4,525,650 0 0 0 0 0

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind Acres Sq Ft Parcels Taxes
Fire (General) 2,345,200 77.36 / 22.64 1,814,247 530,953 71,148 120,526 133,800 92,917
Fire (Capital) 162,171 77.36 / 22.64 125,455 36,716 4,920 8,335 9,252 6,425
Fire (Debt 1/2) 577,913 77.36 / 22.64 447,074 130,839 17,532 29,700 32,971 22,897

Fire 3,085,284 77.36 / 22.64 2,386,776 698,508

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind Acres Sq Ft Parcels Taxes
Library/Museum (General) 2,860,000 99.72 / .28 2,851,992 8,008 1,073 1,818 2,018 1,401
Library/Museum (Capital) 180,819 99.72 / .28 180,313 506 68 115 128 89

Library/Museum 3,040,819 99.72 / .28 3,032,305 8,514

Description (Fund) Taxes Use Residential Comm/Ind Acres Sq Ft Parcels Taxes
Sub Improvement (Cap'l) 666,000 100.0 / 0 666,000 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Improvement 666,000 100.0 / 0 666,000 0 0 0 0 0
 

Acres Sq Ft Parcels Taxes
    

 1,486,117 2,517,676 2,795,106 1,940,675

 4,045,667 4,045,667 4,045,667 4,045,667

 Acres Sq Ft Parcels Taxes
2,559,550 1,527,991 1,250,561 2,104,992

 
Net Difference in Taxes Paid and Service Cost:

 
DDA Total of:

Total DDA Taxes from Base:



Chart #8 – Detail of Costs and Net Benefit by Department 
 
   By comparing the actual taxes budgeted to the Departments with the pro-rata 
user of those tax dollar benefits, Chart #8 details the net benefit to the 
Residential and Commercial/Industrial property classes in four (4) categories:  
total taxes, cost and benefit per acre, cost and benefit per square foot of building 
area, and cost and benefit per parcel count. 
 

Chart #9 – Summary of Net Benefit by Class 
 
   The summary of all of the data presented shows a Net Deficit in tax dollars paid 
by the Residential class by all departments except Police, and of course, General 
Administration, toward the cost of services it consumes. 
 
   In simple terms, the Residential class of properties consumes $6,274,919 more 
dollars of taxes for services than its contribution for the same.  This equates to a 
deficit of $333 toward the cost of service per acre of land, a deficit of $0.09 
toward the cost of service per square foot of building, and a deficit of $199 
toward the cost of service per parcel. 
 
   The summary shows a Net Overage in tax dollars paid by the 
Commercial/Industrial class by all departments except Police, and again, General 
Administration, toward the cost of services it consumes.   
 
   The Commercial/Industrial class of property pays $6,274,919 more in taxes 
than the costs of the services it uses.  This equates to added payments of $1,114 
per acre of land, an additional payment of $0.14 per square foot of building area, 
and an additional $822 paid per parcel for services. 
 
   In other terms, the $6,274,919 dollars of additional taxes paid by the 
Commercial/Industrial class to offset the usage by the Residential class amounts 
to $664,012,593 dollars of Taxable Value (($6,274,919 / 9.45 mills) * 1,000).  The 
Commercial/Industrial class is currently $521,499,630 less in Taxable Value than 
the Residential class. 
 
   The majority of the use to payment ratios will not change significantly than as 
they currently exist.  As the tax ratio equalizes between Residential and 
Commercial/Industrial, or tips towards a Commercial/Industrial majority, the 
Residential class will pay even less of a portion of its costs of services compared 
to its usage. 
 
   This analysis demonstrates that the Commercial/Industrial class of properties is 
a ‘donor’ class of property.  It pays more in taxes than the services it requires 



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

POLICE Taxes Use % Cost Cost/Ben. Per 
Acre

Cost/Ben. 
Sq Ft

Cost/Ben. 
Parcel

Police TOTAL 14,556,344 100.00 14,556,344 732 0.14 447
Taxes - Residential 7,998,711 54.95  542 0.15 298
Benefit - Residential 7,889,538 54.20 534 0.15 294

Net Benefit - Residential (109,173) (8) 0.00 (4)
Taxes - Comm/Ind 6,557,633 45.05  1,281 0.12 860
Benefit - Comm/Ind 6,666,806 45.80 1,302 0.12 874

Net Benefit - Comm/Ind 109,173 21 0.00 14

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION Taxes Use % Cost Cost/Ben. Per 
Acre

Cost/Ben. 
Sq Ft

Cost/Ben. 
Parcel

General Admin. TOTAL 9,653,563 100.00 9,653,563 486 0.09 296
Taxes - Residential 5,304,633 54.95  359 0.10 197
Benefit - Residential 5,304,633 54.95 359 0.10 197

Net Benefit - Residential 0 0 0.00 0
Taxes - Comm/Ind 4,348,930 45.05  850 0.08 570
Benefit - Comm/Ind 4,348,930 45.05 850 0.08 570

Net Benefit - Comm/Ind 0 0 0.00 0

DPW Taxes Use % Cost Cost/Ben. Per 
Acre

Cost/Ben. 
Sq Ft

Cost/Ben. 
Parcel

DPW TOTAL 8,513,718 100.00 8,513,718 428 0.08 261
Taxes - Residential 4,678,288 54.95  317 0.09 174
Benefit - Residential 5,155,691 60.56 349 0.10 192

Net Benefit - Residential 477,103 32 0.01 18
Taxes - Comm/Ind 3,835,430 45.05  749 0.07 503
Benefit - Comm/Ind 3,358,027 39.44 717 0.06 440

Net Benefit - Comm/Ind (477,403) (32) (0.01) (63)

PARKS & RECREATION Taxes Use % Cost Cost/Ben. Per 
Acre

Cost/Ben. 
Sq Ft

Cost/Ben. 
Parcel

Parks & Rec TOTAL 6,300,889 100.00 6,300,889 317 0.12 193
Taxes - Residential 3,462,339 54.95  235 0.07 129
Benefit - Residential 4,977,703 79.00 337 0.09 185

Net Benefit - Residential 1,515,364 102 0.02 56
Taxes - Comm/Ind 2,838,550 45.05  555 0.05 372
Benefit - Comm/Ind 1,323,186 21.00 258 0.02 174

Net Benefit - Comm/Ind (1,515,364) (297) (0.03) (198)
Chart #8 (page 1 of 2)

Chart #8
Detail of Costs and Net Benefit by Department

(Page 1 of 2)



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

REFUSE Taxes Use % Cost Cost/Ben. Per 
Acre

Cost/Ben. 
Sq Ft

Cost/Ben. 
Parcel

Refuse TOTAL 4,525,650 100.00 4,525,650 228 0.04 139
Taxes - Residential 2,486,845 54.95  168 0.05 93
Benefit - Residential 4,525,650 100.00 228 0.04 139

Net Benefit - Residential 2,038,805 60 0.01 46
Taxes - Comm/Ind 2,038,805 45.05  398 0.04 267
Benefit - Comm/Ind 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

Net Benefit - Comm/Ind (2,038,805) (398) (0.04) (267)

FIRE Taxes Use % Cost Cost/Ben. Per 
Acre

Cost/Ben. 
Sq Ft

Cost/Ben. 
Parcel

Fire TOTAL 3,085,284 100.00 3,085,284 155 0.03 95
Taxes - Residential 1,695,364 54.95  115 0.03 63
Benefit - Residential 2,386,776 77.36 162 0.05 89

Net Benefit - Residential 691,412 47 0.02 26
Taxes - Comm/Ind 1,389,920 45.05  272 0.03 182
Benefit - Comm/Ind 698,508 22.64 136 0.01 92

Net Benefit - Comm/Ind (691,412) (136) (0.02) (90)

LIBRARY/MUSEUM Taxes Use % Cost Cost/Ben. Per 
Acre

Cost/Ben. 
Sq Ft

Cost/Ben. 
Parcel

Library/Museum TOTAL 3,040,819 100.00 3,040,819 153 0.03 93
Taxes - Residential 1,670,930 54.95  113 0.03 62
Benefit - Residential 3,032,305 99.72 205 0.06 113

Net Benefit - Residential 1,361,375 92 0.03 51
Taxes - Comm/Ind 1,369,889 45.05  268 0.03 180
Benefit - Comm/Ind 8,514 0.28 2 0.00 1

Net Benefit - Comm/Ind (1,361,375) (266) (0.03) (179)

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT Taxes Use % Cost Cost/Ben. Per 
Acre

Cost/Ben. 
Sq Ft

Cost/Ben. 
Parcel

Sub. Imp. TOTAL 666,000 100.00 666,000 33 0.01 20
Taxes - Residential 365,967 54.95  25 0.01 14
Benefit - Residential 666,000 100.00 33 0.01 20

Net Benefit - Residential 300,033 8 0.00 6
Taxes - Comm/Ind 300,033 45.05  6 0.01 39
Benefit - Comm/Ind 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

Net Benefit - Comm/Ind (300,033) (6) (0.01) (39)

Chart #8 (page 2 of 2)

Chart #8
Detail of Net Benefit by Department

(Page 2 of 2)



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

NET BENEFIT - RESIDENTIAL Taxes   Benefit Per 
Acre

Benefit Sq 
Ft

Benefit 
Parcel

Police (109,173)  (8) 0.00 (4)
General Administration 0  0 0.00 0

DPW 477,103  32 0.01 18
Parks & Recreation 1,515,364  102 0.02 56

Refuse 2,038,805  60 0.01 46
Fire 691,412  47 0.02 26

Library/Museum 1,361,375  92 0.03 51
Subdivision Improvement 300,033 8 0.00 6

Total Net Benefit Res'l 6,274,919 333 0.09 199
    

NET BENEFIT - COMM/IND Taxes   Benefit Per 
Acre

Benefit Sq 
Ft

Benefit 
Parcel

Police 109,173  21 0.00 14
General Administration 0  0 0.00 0

DPW (477,103)  (32) (0.01) (63)
Parks & Recreation (1,515,364)  (297) (0.03) (198)

Refuse (2,038,805)  (398) (0.04) (267)
Fire (691,412)  (136) (0.02) (90)

Library/Museum (1,361,375)  (266) (0.03) (179)
Subdivision Improvement (300,033) (6) (0.01) (39)

Total Net Benefit Comm/Ind (6,274,919) (1,114) (0.14) (822)
      

Chart #9

Summary of Net Benefit by Class
Chart #9



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Detail and Analysis of Assessment/Tax Roll by Class

Unit of Government Millage Rate
Total 

Commercial/  
Industrial

C/I % of Total Residential 
Real

Residential 
% of Total

Total 
Assessed 

Value
Auburn Hills 10.7902 2,022,452,080 81.63 455,193,045 18.37 2,477,645,125
Birmingham 15.0719 628,062,965 23.65 2,027,378,240 76.35 2,655,441,205

Bloomfield Hills 8.3000 216,725,300 19.98 867,837,350 80.02 1,084,562,650
Bloomfield Twp 10.9545 371,213,750 8.52 3,987,677,690 91.48 4,358,891,440
Farmington Hills 11.1077 1,540,099,480 32.57 3,187,827,470 67.43 4,727,926,950
Madison Heights 17.2970 713,018,560 51.51 671,080,850 48.49 1,384,099,410

Novi 10.5416 1,310,301,130 36.59 2,270,250,250 63.41 3,580,551,380
Rochester Hills 9.6681 921,726,640 22.97 3,090,629,810 77.03 4,012,356,450

Royal Oak 11.7816 661,629,560 23.04 2,209,896,130 76.96 2,871,525,690
Southfield 16.3428 2,303,962,950 54.36 1,934,412,027 45.64 4,238,374,977

Troy 9.4500 2,866,337,870 49.77 2,892,925,590 50.23 5,759,263,460
Waterford Twp 10.2910 696,296,848 22.02 2,465,227,902 77.98 3,161,524,750

West Bloomfield Twp 9.0619 475,885,820 10.39 4,102,197,380 89.61 4,578,083,200

Chart #10

Comparison of Millage Rates by Percent of Residential Property Assessment

(source data:  2005 Oakland County Apportionment Report)

Chart #10











































licarila
Text Box
01.STC











CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 20, 2006, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 P.M. 
 
Ms. Jan Staton of the The Bahá'í Faith gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented the Law Day 2005-Outstanding 

Activity Award to the City Attorney’s office and the Philo T. Farnsworth Award for 
Excellence in Community Programming to the City Attorney’s office and Community 
Affairs in recognition of their achievement of receiving these prestigious awards. 

b) Mayor Schilling presented a Certificate of Appreciation on behalf of the City of Troy to 
retiring City employee Jackie Sherwin-Wright in recognition of her 27 years of service. 

  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Approval of Rezoning Application – North Side of Fourteen Mile Road, East of 
John R, Section 36 – B-2 to M-1 (Z 372-B) 

 
Resolution #2006-02-062 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the B-2 to M-1 rezoning request, located on the north side of Fourteen Mile 
Road, east of John R, Section 36, part of parcel 88-20-36-376-049, being 4.25 acres in size, is 
described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached Certificate of Survey 
drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SW ¼ of Section 36 
 

Beginning at a point distant N 89°13’40” W, 996.99 ft. as measured (recorded as 996.00 
ft.) along the south line of said Section 36 from the South ¼ corner of said Section 36, 
thence, N 00°45’30” E 60.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning; thence N 89°13’40” W, 673.86 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

ft. (measured and recorded) along the south line of said Section 36; thence N 00°57’55” 
E, 275.00 ft.; thence S 89°13’40” E, 672.65 ft. (measured and recorded) to a point on the 
west line of lot 70 of Robbins Executive Park East No. 5 Subdivision (Liber 146, Pages 
11-12, of Oakland County Records); thence S 00°45’30” W, 275.00 ft to the Point of 
Beginning.  
 
Containing 4.25 ac., more or less, and subject to easements and restrictions of record. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
C-2 Approval of Rezoning Application – Proposed Medical Office, East Side of 

Stephenson Highway, South Side of Maple, West of I-75, Section 35 – R-C to O-M 
(Z 286-B) 

 
Resolution #2006-02-063 
Moved by Fleming   
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-M rezoning request, located on the east side of Stephenson 
Highway, south of Maple, west of I-75 (1420-1450 Stephenson Hwy.), Section 35, part of parcel 
88-20-35-126-026, being 11.355 acres in size, is described in the following legal description 
and illustrated on the attached Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, N 1/2 of Section 35 
 

Lots 12 and 13 of Robbins Executive Park West No. 4 Subdivision (Liber 177, Pages 14-
16, of Oakland County Records) more particularly described as: Beginning at the 
Northwest corner of Lot 12; thence S 89°14’30” E, 1027.24 ft. along the southerly right-
of-way line of Maple Rd. (120 ft. wide); thence S 00°38’29” W, 496.09 ft. along the 
westerly right-of-way of I-75 (300 ft. wide); thence N 89°14’30” W, 378.53 ft.; thence S 
01°13’00” W, 58.92 ft.; thence N 89°14’30” W, 476.26 ft.; thence along the Easterly right-
of-way line of Stephenson Hwy. (204 ft. wide) northerly 582.26 ft. along the arc of curve 
to the left (radius 2985.49 ft., central angle of 11°16’36”, chord bears N 16°33’12” W, 
581.33 ft.) to the Point of Beginning.  

 
Containing 11.355 ac., more or less, and subject to easements and restrictions of record. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

C-3 Affirmation of Michigan NextEnergy Exemption of Alternative Energy Personal 
Property – United Solar Ovonic Corporation – 1100 W Maple Road 

 
Resolution #2006-02-064 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy AFFIRMS the Michigan NextEnergy 
Exemption of alternative energy Personal Property located at 1100 W. Maple, Troy MI., as 
certified by the City Assessor, in an amount not to exceed $78,960.17; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk of the City of Troy shall FORWARD a copy 
of this Resolution, and attachments to the Michigan NextEnergy Authority at 300 N. Washington 
Square, Lansing, MI 48913. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-4 Affirmation of Michigan NextEnergy Exemption of Alternative Energy Personal 

Property – Ovonic Battery Company – 1414 Combermere 
 
Resolution #2006-02-065 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy AFFIRMS the Michigan NextEnergy 
Exemption of alternative energy Personal Property located at 1414 Combermere, Troy MI., as 
certified by the City Assessor; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk of the City of Troy shall FORWARD a copy 
of this Resolution, and attachments to the Michigan NextEnergy Authority at 300 N. Washington 
Square, Lansing, MI 48913. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-5 Affirmation of Michigan NextEnergy Exemption of Alternative Energy Personal 

Property – Compact Power, Inc. – 1857 Technology 
 
Resolution #2006-02-066 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy AFFIRMS the Michigan NextEnergy 
Exemption of alternative energy Personal Property located at 1857 Technology, Troy MI., as 
certified by the City Assessor; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk of the City of Troy shall FORWARD a copy 
of this Resolution, and attachments to the Michigan NextEnergy Authority at 300 N. Washington 
Square, Lansing, MI 48913. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Request to Transfer of Class C-SDM License for Corradi’s – 1090 Rochester Road  
City Administration Requests that this Agenda Item be Postponed to the Regular 
City Council Meeting Scheduled for Monday, March 6, 2006 

 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2006-02-067 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Request to Transfer Class C-SDM 
License for Corradi’s-1090 Rochester Road until the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled 
for Monday, March 6, 2006. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
(a) New License 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  

 
RESOLVED, That the request from White Star Entertainment, Inc. to transfer ownership of a 
2005 Class C-SDM licensed business with Entertainment Permit and Official Permit (food) at 
1090 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County, from MKC, Inc.; be CONSIDERED FOR 
APPROVAL. 
 
(b) Agreement
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with White Star Entertainment, Inc. to transfer ownership of a 2005 
Class C-SDM licensed business with Entertainment Permit and Official Permit (food) at 1090 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County, from MKC, Inc.; and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to approve the of Transfer of Class C-SDM License for 
Corradi’s – 1090 Rochester Road be AMENDED by INSERTING “with dance permit” AFTER 
“Official Permit (food)” in resolutions (a) and (b). 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-02-068 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-2, which shall be considered after Consent Agenda (E) 
items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Contract 06-3 – Ferry Drain Restoration    
 
Resolution #2006-02-068-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to complete the Ferry Drain Restoration is hereby AWARDED to 
the lowest bidder meeting specifications, D & J Lawn & Snow, Inc. of Clinton Twp. at an 
estimated total cost of $76,882.25, for completion in the Spring of 2006; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the vendor submission of 
proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, and all other 
specified requirements; and if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, such 
additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost or 
$7,688.23. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles    
 
Resolution #2006-02-068-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide fleet vehicles from Golling Chrysler Jeep, Inc. and Buff 
Whelan Chevrolet are hereby APPROVED through Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreements at an estimated total cost of $100,956.00. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles    
 
Resolution #2006-02-068-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase fleet vehicles from Signature Ford L-M Jeep Eagle is 
hereby APPROVED through a Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an 
estimated total cost of $42,353.00. 
 
E-5 Vacate Abandoned Industrial Development District and Rescind Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate 
 
Resolution #2006-02-068-E-5 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy had formerly established an Industrial 
Development District (IDD), and granted an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 
Certificate # 98-209-01; 
 
WHEREAS, The project and building have been abandoned and vacated. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby VACATES the Industrial 
Development District established at 1300 Coolidge (IFEC #98-209-01), located in the City of 
Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy also RESCINDS AND 
REVOKES the following abandoned and vacated Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) being Certificate # 98-209-01; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution shall be FORWARDED to the 
Michigan State Tax Commission by certified mail. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

E-6 State of Michigan QVF Digitized Signature Project Grant Application Authorization 
 
Resolution #2006-02-068-E-6 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council wishes to apply to the Secretary of State for a grant to 
receive federal financial assistance, provided to the State under the provisions of Title II, 
Section 251, of the Help America Vote Act (HAVA), CFDA 90.401, with the project known as 
the HAVA Digitized Signature Qualified Voter File (QVF) Refresh Project; 
 
WHEREAS, The HAVA Digitized Signature Qualified Voter File (QVF) Refresh Project upgrade 
will provide the City Clerk’s Office with digitized signatures of all Registered Voters within the 
City of Troy, as well as QVF system upgrades to be utilized in the Voter Registration and 
Election Administration functions of the City Clerk’s Office;  
 
WHEREAS, The acquisition of the equipment and upgrade of the software is at no cost to the 
City of Troy. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
SUBMIT this grant application on behalf of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, on this 
20th day of February, 2006. 
 
E-7 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sidewalk – Sidwell #88-20-15-252-044 
 
Resolution #2006-02-068-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for sidewalk from the property owner, Velampudi A. 
Rdii and Jyothirmai Velampudi, having Sidwell #88-20-15-252-044 is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-02-069 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 5:30 PM Special City Council Meeting, the 7:30 PM 
Regular City Council Meeting of February 6, 2006 as submitted and the Regular City Council 
Meeting of February 15, 2006 be APPROVED as corrected. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Senior Citizens; Charter Revision Committee; Municipal Building Authority 

 
 (a)  Mayoral Appointments  
 
Resolution #2006-02-070 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Al Aceves Unexpired Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Frank Shier Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
David Eisenbacher & William Weisgerber Unexpired Term 04/30/06 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

Vote on Resolution to Separate the Vote for City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2006-02-071 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby STIPULATES that the vote for City Council 
Appointments be separated. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution for Appointment to Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 
Resolution  #2006-02-072 
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the below Board and Committee as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Frank Shier Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Roll Call Vote for Nominations to Charter Revision Committee  
 
Resolution #2006-02-073 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby NOMINATED to serve on the Charter 
Revision Committee for the vacancy with an unexpired term of April 30, 2006: 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Nominated by: Broomfield   Nominated by: Beltramini  
David Eisenbacher  William Weisgerber 
Howrylak   Schilling 
Lambert   Beltramini  
Stine    
Broomfield    
Fleming   

 
David Eisenbacher received the nomination for appointment to serve on the Charter Revision 
Committee. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

Vote on Resolution for Appointment to Charter Revision Committee 
 
Resolution #2006-02-074 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the below Board and Committee as indicated: 
 
Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
David Eisenbacher  Unexpired Term 04/30/06 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: Beltramini 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution for Appointment to Municipal Building Authority 
 
Resolution #2006-02-075 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the below Board and Committee as indicated: 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
John M. Lamerato (Asst City Manager/Finance & Admin.) Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-2 Council Rules of Procedure Proposed Amendment 
 
Resolution #2006-02-076 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Council Rules as recommended by City 
Administration by amending Rule Number 15.A, Appointments. 
 
Yes:  Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert  
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Stine 
 
MOTION FAILED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

F-3 Board and Committee Term Limits 
 
(a) Suggested Reconsidered Resolution
 
Resolution #2006-02-077 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #1998-540, Moved by Pallotta and Seconded by Pryor, as it 
appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 
 

RESOLVED, that each member of the following boards, commissions, 
and committees shall not serve more than three consecutive terms; any 
portion of a term served shall constitute one full term and this resolution 
shall apply only to terms starting after January 1, 1999: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for 
Senior Citizens; Animal Control Board; Board of Zoning Appeals; CATV 
Advisory Committee; Charter Revision Committee; Historical 
Commission; Historic District Commission; Library Board; Liquor 
Committee; Parks and Recreation Board; Personnel Board; Planning 
Commission; Retirement System Board of Trustees and Traffic 
Committee. 
 
Yes:  All-6 
No:  None 
Absent: Schilling 

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Yes: All-7   
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend #1 
 
Resolution 2006-02-078 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution 1998-540 be AMENDED by REPLACING the words “portion of a 
term served” with the words “service greater than one-half (½) of a term plus one (1) month” 
after the word “any” in the first (1st) paragraph. 
 
Yes:  All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend #2 
 
Resolution 2006-02-079 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That Resolution 1998-540 be AMENDED by STRIKING “and” as it appears 
BEFORE “Traffic Committee” and INSERTING “Board of Review; Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority; Election Commission; Downtown Development Authority; Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board; Historic District Study Committee; Troy Daze Advisory Board and Youth Council“ 
AFTER “Traffic Committee.” 
 
Yes: Stine, Beltramini, Broomfield 
No:  Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert, Schilling  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Reconsidered Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution 2006-02-080 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Pryor 
 
RESOLVED, That each member of the following boards, commissions, and committees shall 
not serve more than three consecutive terms; any service greater than one-half (½) of a term 
plus one (1) month shall constitute one full term and this resolution shall apply only to terms 
starting after January 1, 1999: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; 
Animal Control Board; Board of Zoning Appeals; CATV Advisory Committee; Charter Revision 
Committee; Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; Library Board; Liquor 
Committee; Parks and Recreation Board; Personnel Board; Planning Commission; Retirement 
System Board of Trustees and Traffic Committee. 
 
Yes: Stine, Broomfield   
No: Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
 
MOTION FAILED 
  
F-4 Human Resources Renovation 
 
Resolution #2006-02-081 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to renovate office space 
for the Human Resources Department, as outlined in Detailed Cost Estimates listed in 
Appendix C, for an estimated total project cost of $79,511.00 using in-house personnel, 
approved contracts, and standard purchasing procedures.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

F-5 Request for Annual Evaluation – City Attorney – To appear as an agenda item on 
the Monday, February 27, 2006 Agenda 

 
F-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 

Maintenance 
 
Resolution #2006-02-082 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to complete the Parking Lot Maintenance Program for the City of 
Troy is hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder, Asphalt Specialists, Inc. of Pontiac, MI, for an 
estimated total cost of $154,960.00 for Fire Station #2 and $110,999.00 for Flynn Park, at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 25, 2006, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if changes in the quantity of work is required either additive or 
deductive, such changes are authorized in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project 
cost and within budgetary limitations. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-7 Compensation for Interim City Manager 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That Mr. John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration, is to 
be COMPENSATED an additional $300.00 dollars per week during the time frame he acts in 
the capacity of Interim City Manager. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2006-02-083 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution for Compensation for Interim City Manager be AMENDED  
by STRIKING “$300.00” and INSERTING “$350.00”, and by STRIKING “Interim” and 
INSERTING “Acting.” 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Stine   
No: Howrylak, Lambert 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

 
Resolution #2006-02-084 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That Mr. John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration, is to 
be COMPENSATED an additional $350.00 dollars per week during the time frame he acts in 
the capacity of Acting City Manager. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-8 Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C. – Section 36 Park 
 
Resolution #2006-02-085 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by MCL 
15.268(e) (Troy v. Premium Construction) and MCL 15.268(h) (MCL 15.243). 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-9 2005-2006 Budget Amendment No. 2 
 
Resolution #2006-02-086 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That 2005-06 Budget Amendment No. 2 be APPROVED as submitted, a copy of 
which is to be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Council Rules 
 
Resolution #2006-02-087 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City 
Council to discuss and take action on an item that does not appear on the agenda.  
Yes: All-7 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

 
Vote on Resolution to Schedule Special Joint Meeting 
 
Resolution #2006-02-088 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Joint Meeting with the Troy 
Daze Advisory Committee on Tuesday, February 28, 2006 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Community 
Center – 3179 Livernois for the purpose of discussing the Troy Daze Festival. 
 
Yes: All-7 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 218) – Article 10.30.03, Permit Child Care 

Centers by Special Use Approval in the R-1A through R-1E Zoning Districts – March 6, 
2006  

b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 214) – Article IV and X, Group Child Care 
Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts – March 6, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) Tentative Agreements with the Following Collective Bargaining Units:  

1) Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) 
2) Troy Fire Staff Officers Association (TFSOA)  
3) AFSCME (Public Works/Parks and Recreation/Engineering Employees) 

Noted and Filed 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council 
Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – August 10, 2004 
b) Local Development Finance Authority/Final – May 9, 2005  
c) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – October 17, 2005  
d) Cable Advisory Committee/Final – October 20, 2005 
e) Historic Commission/Final – October 25, 2005  
f) Historic District Commission/Final – November 15, 2005  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 7, 2005  
h) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – January 3, 2006  
i) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – January 4, 2006  
j) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – January 4, 2006  
k) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – January 4, 2006  
l) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 5, 2006  
m) Planning Commission/Draft – January 10, 2006  
n) Planning Commission/Final – January 10, 2006 
o) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 11, 2006 
p) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – January 19, 2006  
q) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – January 24, 2006  
r) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 24, 2006  
s) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 1, 2006 
t) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – February 2, 2006  
u) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – February 7, 2006 
v) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – February 13, 2006 

Noted and Filed  
 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of January 2006  
b) Parks and Recreation Department – Aquatic Center Fee Recommendations for 2006  
c) Engineering Department – Federal Aid Funding for Major Roads – FY 2009  
d) Real Estate and Development Department – Monarch Project  
e) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – January 31, 2006  
f) Information Technology – Automated Visitor Information System (AVIS) Methodology 

Noted and Filed 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to the Department of Public Works from Lloyd Lewis Regarding the 

Excellent Service and Response Time  
b) Letter of Thanks to Captain Murphy from Barbara Cenko, TVS Communication Solutions, 

for the Opportunity to Ride Along with Officer Clark  
c) Letter of Appreciation to Troy City Council from Bloomfield Hills Board of Education 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) State of Michigan Notice of Hearing for Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company 

– Case No. U-14716 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  State of Michigan Department of Transportation Report Regarding the 

Environmental Assessment for Improvements to the I-75 Interchange 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 17 - 

J-7  Memo from City Attorney Regarding Recently Adopted Macomb County Code of 
Ethics 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 
 
Resolution #2006-02-089 
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by State Statute MCL 15.268 (e) and MCL 15.268 (h): Troy v. Premium Construction, 
L.L.C. (Section 36 Park) [Refer to Regular Business Item F-8]; COBASYS v. City of Troy; and 
Gerback v. Troy – Settlement Proposal.  
 
Yes:  Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert  
No:  Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:48 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 11:20 P.M. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Council Rules 
 
Resolution #2006-02-090 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City 
Council to discuss and take action on items that do not appear on the agenda.  
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Stine  
No: Howrylak, Lambert 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 20, 2006 
 

- 18 - 

Vote on Resolution to Schedule a Special Meeting 
 
Resolution #2006-02-091 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting on Thursday, 
February 23, 2006 at 5:30 P.M. in the City Council Chambers for the purpose of discussing 
Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C (Section 36-Park). 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No:  Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Rescind Abated Tax Obligation for COBASYS/Texaco Ovonic 
 
Resolution #2006-02-092 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS COBASYS/Texaco Ovonic’s obligation 
to pay estimated abated taxes in the amount of $175,005.63 for the Tax Years 2003 through 
2008 as it appears in Resolution #2004-10-532. 
 
Yes:  Broomfield, Fleming, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No:  Howrylak, Lambert 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:29 P.M. 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Barbara A. Holmes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 22, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Wednesday, February 22, 2006, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 P.M. 
 
Council Member Beltramini gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given.  

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield (Absent) 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak (Absent) 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Members Broomfield and Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2006-02-093 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Members Broomfield and Howrylak’s absence at the Regular City 
Council meeting of February 22, 2006 is EXCUSED due to being out of town.  
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak   

OUTLINE OF PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 

The City Attorney suggests the following outline of procedure for consideration of liquor 
violations: 
 

1. The Mayor calls the licensee whose case is to be heard. 
2. The licensee and/or his attorney should be asked to the front of the Chamber to 

acknowledge their presence for the record and can be seated. 
3. The Assistant City Attorney makes a very short opening statement regarding the 

violation(s), and presents proofs. 
4. When witnesses are called, they should be sworn by the City Clerk to tell the truth. 
5. Once the witness is sworn, the Assistant City Attorney will question the witness. 
6. The police report and other documents may be offered into evidence as part of the 

case and should be kept by the City Clerk as part of the records. 
7. At the conclusion of the City’s case, the licensee or his attorney should be asked to 

offer an explanation for the violations if they choose, make a statement, offer 
evidence, or otherwise make their presentation. 

8. If the licensee offers evidence from witnesses who have not been previously sworn, 
the City Clerk should swear those witnesses. 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 22, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

9. Once the licensee has concluded his presentation, the Assistant City Attorney should 
be given an opportunity for rebuttal, if any is desired. 

10. City Council members may ask questions at any time, but it is suggested that this 
questioning by Council members be conducted after the parties conclude their 
presentations. 

11. When the presentation of evidence is concluded, the matter returns to the City 
Council for discussion, deliberation, and resolution. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  

A. Items on the Current Agenda 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

The following named licensees have been given notice to appear for this series of Public 
Hearings regarding alleged violations: 
 
1.0  Liquor Violations (Class C):  
 

 a) Name:  Mon Jin Lau, Inc.. (dba: Mon Jin Lau) 
  Address: 1515 East Maple Road, 48083  
  License No.: Class C (353-2004 SS)  

 
b) Name:  Maggiano’s/Corner Bakery Holding (dba: Maggiano’s Little Italy) 

  Address: 2089 West Big Beaver, 48084 
  License No.: Class C (130954-2004 SS / 130955-2004) 
 

 c) Name:  Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc. (dba: Mayur Indian Cuisine) 
  Address: 5113 Rochester Road, 48085 
  License No.: Class C (132851-2004 SS) 

 
2.0 Liquor Violations (SDD/SDM): 
 

a) Name:  Jill-Nick Corporation (dba: Buscemi’s Party Shoppe) 
  Address: 3296 Rochester, 48083  

  License No.: SDD/SDM (SDD 73920-2004 SS / SDM 14525-2004) 

1.0 Liquor Violations (Class C): (a) Mon Jin Lau, Inc. (dba: Mon Jin Lau); (b) 
Maggiano’s/Corner Bakery Holding (dba: Maggiano’s Little Italy); (c) Mayur Indian 
Cuisine, Inc. (dba: Mayur Indian Cuisine) 

 
(a) Mon Jin Lau, Inc. (dba: Mon Jin Lau)
 
Resolution #2006-02-094 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 22, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 22, 2006 for the following 
licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  Mon Jin Lau, Inc. (dba: Mon Jin Lau) 
  Address: 1515 East Maple Road, 48083  

  License No.: Class C (353-2004 SS) 
 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: March 4, 2005 – SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test);  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had a prior violations dated: October 29, 2003 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); October 19, 2000 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); April 11, 1998 – 
CUSTOMERS AFTER-HOURS; November 7, 1994 – GAMBLING (Citizen Complaint); August 
11, 1994 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); June 17, 1992 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); April 10, 1984 – NON-EMPLOYEES ON PREMISES AFTER HOURS; 
HINDER AND OBSTRUCT POLICE OFFICERS DURING INVESTIGATION; and October 15, 
1978 – SALE TO MINORS  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 22, 2006. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 353-2004 SS in the 
name of Mon Jin Lau, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the STIPULATION that all 
management employees and all employees serving food and liquor be TIPS and TAMS trained 
and that the Licensee provide proof of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) 
days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
(b) Maggiano’s/Corner Bakery Holding (dba: Maggiano’s Little Italy) 
 
Resolution #2006-02-095 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 22, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 22, 2006 for the following 
licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  Maggiano’s/Corner Bakery Holding (dba: Maggiano’s Little Italy) 
  Address: 2089 West Big Beaver, 48084 

  License No.: Class C (130954-2004 SS / 130955-2004) 
 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: March 4, 2005 – SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had no prior violations; 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 22, 2006. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 130954-2004 SS / 
130955-2004 in the name of Maggiano’s/Corner Bakery Holding in the City of Troy, BE 
RENEWED with the STIPULATION that all management employees and all employees serving 
food and liquor be TIPS and TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide proof of training to the 
Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
(c) Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc. (dba: Mayur Indian Cuisine)
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 22, 2006 for the following 
licensed establishment: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 22, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

Name:  Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc. (dba: Mayur Indian Cuisine) 
  Address: 5113 Rochester Road, 48085 
  License No.: Class C (132851-2004 SS) 

 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: March 4, 2005 – SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had no prior violations; 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 22, 2006. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 132851-2004 SS in 
the name of Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the 
STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS and TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide 
proof of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of 
this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Vote on Amendment 
 
Resolution #2006-02-096 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to make a recommendation to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission that Class C License Number 132851-2004 SS in the name of Mayur Indian 
Cuisine, Inc. in the City of Troy be renewed with stipulation is hereby AMENDED by STRIKING 
“ninety (90) days” and INSERTING “sixty (60) days.”  
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-02-097 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 22, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 22, 2006 for the following 
licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc. (dba: Mayur Indian Cuisine) 
  Address: 5113 Rochester Road, 48085 
  License No.: Class C (132851-2004 SS) 

 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: March 4, 2005 – SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had no prior violations; 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 22, 2006. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 132851-2004 SS in 
the name of Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the 
STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS and TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide 
proof of training to the Troy Police Department within sixty (60) days; and a certified copy of this 
resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 

2.0 Liquor Violations (SDD/SDM): (a) Jill-Nick Corporation (dba: Buscemi’s Party 
Shoppe) 

 
(a) Jill-Nick Corporation (dba: Buscemi’s Party Shoppe) 
 
Resolution #2006-02-098 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license not be renewed after a Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 22, 2006, for the 
following licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  Jill-Nick Corporation (dba: Buscemi’s Party Shoppe) 
  Address: 3296 Rochester, 48083  

  License No.: SDD/SDM (SDD 73920-2004 SS / SDM 14525-2004) 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 22, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

 
and, having found violation for the following codes and/or regulations: February 11, 2005 – 
SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had a prior violation dated: March 21, 2000 – CHARGED WITH 
“..TRANSFER INTEREST WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL” ON OR ABOUT 01/01/97; October 
17, 1990 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test);  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 22, 2006. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is recommended to 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that SDD License Number SDD 73920-2004 SS and 
SDM License Number SDM 14525-2004 in the name of Jill-Nick Corporation. in the City of 
Troy, NOT BE REVOKED and that a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:39 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Barbara A. Holmes, Deputy City Clerk 
 



G:/PEC Correspondence/2006/Memos/PC06M.019 

 
Date:  February 22, 2006 

To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
From:  Peggy E. Clifton, Human Resources Director 
Re: Agenda Item – Contract Ratification - Troy Command Officers 

Association (TCOA) and City of Troy 

RECOMMENDATION 

City management supports and recommends approval of the tentative agreement for 
a three-year collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and the Troy 
Command Officers Association. 

BACKGROUND 

On February 20, 2006 the TCOA membership ratified a tentative agreement for a 
three-year collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and TCOA.  
This agreement replaces the contract that expired June 30, 2005.   

This agreement is the 11th collective bargaining agreement to be achieved using the 
Interest-Based Bargaining method in which both sides discuss possible solutions to 
“issues” rather than holding to “positions” or “demands”.   

This tentative agreement provides a mutually satisfactory solution to the issues 
raised by both parties in negotiations, and serves to bring more consistency in 
benefits among employee groups, including implementation of cost-saving 
measures, consistent with our stated goals.  And, while it includes increases in some 
areas, these are in keeping with maintaining a competitive position with our 
comparable communities, as well as contributing toward our achieving our goal in 
other areas.  A summary of the tentative agreement is attached for your review. 

 

PEC/bjm 

Attachment 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



 

H:Negotiations\TCOA\2006\TA Summary 2006-02-14 

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
City of Troy and TCOA 

2006-2009 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
 
ISSUE    SOLUTION 
 
Wages    7/01/05 3% 
     7/01/06 3% 
     7/01/07 3% 
 
Pension a. Defined Contribution Plan:   

1. Employees who promote into the unit with a 
DC pension retain the contribution rates they 
had prior to promotion 

2. If a Lt. or Capt. in the DC plan retires by Dec. 
31, 2006, DC participants will receive $5,000 

 
b. Defined Benefit Plan: 

Multiplier changed to 2.8% (from 2.5%, 2.25% at 
age 62) and employee contribution increased to 4% 
(from 3%), contingent on one DB employee retiring 
by July 1, 2006 

 
Hospitalization/Medical Insur. a. The cash-in-lieu amount currently paid to employees 

 who opt out of health insurance will be frozen at the 
 current level.  Employees who decide to opt out after 
 July 1, 2006 will receive $250 (reduced from 
 approximately $420). 

 
b. $5/$10 drug rider replaces $5 for all employees. 
 
c. MMC-PC rider added to active employee health 

insurance, consistent with what is provided to TPOA 
members 

 
d. Employee portion of premium sharing increased 

from $10 per month to $20 per month. 
 

e. If two full-time employees are married to each other, 
one must opt out of health insurance and dental 
insurance and elect to receive the cash-in-lieu 
payment referenced above. 

 
Retiree Medical Insur. a. For employees retiring after ratification date, $5/$10 

 drug rider replaces $5 drug rider. 
b. Dental insurance for retirees eliminated for 

employees promoting into the unit after date of 
ratification 



 

H:Negotiations\TCOA\2006\TA Summary 2006-02-14 

2
c. Signing up for Medicare Part B is voluntary, but 

employee must notify the City if they do sign up 
d. Officers retiring after ratification date who are eligible 

for retiree health insurance coverage, whether they 
participate in the Defined Benefit or Defined 
Contribution Pension Plan, will have available to 
them, in addition to the BCBS DRI plan, other health 
insurance plans with a $5/$10 drug rider, including 
PPO, HAP, or Blue Care Network plans made 
available by the City. 

 
b. Clarified eligibility for retiree health insurance and 

definition of “two person coverage” 
 
Clothing & Cleaning Allowance a. Amount of additional clothing allowance allotted for 

 transfers in/out of non-uniform divisions increased 
 from $75 to $150 
b. Specific uniform items to be provided by the City to 
 Police Sergeants promoted to Police Lieutenant.  

 
Shift Bonus Effective upon ratification date, increased shift bonus to 

$.60 per hour for afternoons and $.80 per hour for 
midnights (from $.25 and $.35 respectively), consistent with 
TPOA. 

 
Tuition Reimbursement Annual maximum reduced to $2500 from $4000 effective 

date of ratification. 
 
 
Language Revisions 1. Discipline:  Permit a steward (instead of legal 

 advisor) to be present when officer is required to 
 make a verbal or written statement; record retention 
 time limits for oral and written reprimands changed 
 to be consistent with the TPOA record retention 
 requirements.  
2. Vacation:  Redefined criteria for use of vacation on a 

one-day-at-a-time basis, established a mandatory 
minimum annual usage, prohibited carryover to the 
next year except under exigent circumstances. 

3. Promotions:  Rotating list of three psychological 
testing facilities reduced to two due to one facility no 
longer being available. 

4. Grievance Procedure:  Grievances must be 
submitted within 14 days instead of five days. 

5. Funeral Leave:  Added language stating that funeral 
leave may be used for bereavement; added 
‘stepchild’ to definition of family. 

6. Holidays:  Clarified the conditions under which an 
officer working on a holiday is paid at straight time or 
time and one-half. 



G:/PEC Correspondence/2006/Memos/PC06M.20 

 
Date:  February 22, 2006 

To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
From:  Peggy E. Clifton, Human Resources Director 
Re: Agenda Item – Contract Ratification - Troy Fire Staff Officers Association 

(TFSOA) and City of Troy 

RECOMMENDATION 

City management supports and recommends approval of the tentative agreement for a 
three-year collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and the Troy Fire 
Staff Officers Association. 

BACKGROUND 

On February 20, 2006 the TFSOA membership ratified a tentative agreement for a three-
year collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and TFSOA.  This 
agreement will replace the contract that will expire June 30, 2006.   

This agreement is the 9th collective bargaining agreement to be achieved using the 
Interest-Based Bargaining method in which both sides discuss possible solutions to 
“issues” rather than holding to “positions” or “demands”.  This process has enabled the 
parties to settle contracts in considerably less time and while improving and maintaining 
excellent relationships with the employees and their bargaining representatives. 

This tentative agreement provides a mutually satisfactory solution to the issues raised by 
both parties in negotiations, and continues to bring more consistency in benefits among 
employee groups, including implementation of cost-saving measures, consistent with our 
stated goals.  We have succeeded in adopting some significant cost savings in health 
insurance, retiree medical insurance and pension areas.  The proposed wage increase is 
consistent with both the external market and internal employee group adjustments, and 
permits us to maintain a competitive position with our comparable communities.  A 
summary of the tentative agreement is attached for your review. 

PEC/bjm 

Attachment 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



G:Negotiations\TFSOA\2006\TA Summary 2006-02-10 

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
City of Troy and TFSOA 

2006-2009 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
 
 
ISSUE    SOLUTION 
 
Wages    3% per year, 3 year contract 
 
 
Retiree Medical Insur. a. Clarified eligibility for retiree health insurance 

 and definition of “two person coverage” 
 
 b. For employees hired after 7/1/06, retiree health 

 insurance replaced with a Retirement Health 
 Savings (RHS) plan; contribution rates:  
 employer - 4%, employee - 2%  

 
 
Hospitalization/Medical Insur. a. Cash payment to employees who opt out of  
      health insurance reduced to $250/mo. from  
      $420 
 

b. Eliminated dual coverage for employees who 
are married to each other, and the spouse who 
opts out of health insurance is in not eligible for 
cash-in-lieu payment (with the exception of 
current employees receiving the cash-in-lieu 
payment). 

 
c. Co-payment for prescription drug rider (PDR) 

increased from $5 (for all drugs) to $5/$10 (for 
generic/brand name drugs) for all employees. 

 
Retirement    a. Reduce employer contribution for the DC plan  
      for new hires by 1% (from 11% to 10%) 
 
     b. Clarified application of disability plan for   
      participants in a defined contribution plan 
 
 
Tuition Reimbursement  Amount of tuition reimbursement increased to 100%  
     (from 50%) up to a maximum of $2500 per fiscal year  
     (changed from an unlimited amount), for any   
     Associates or Bachelors degree that is    
     organizationally related 
 



 

H:Negotiations\TFSOA\2006\TA Summary 2006-02-10 

2

 
Added Entry Level Classification Fire Staff Technician 

a. Minimum requirement:  currently active 
member with at least 5 years volunteer 
department service 

b. Salary Schedule: 
Start:   $38,000 
Step 1   $43,000 
Step 2   $48,000 
Step 3   $53,000 
Step 4   $58,000 

 



G:/PEC Correspondence/2006/Memos/PC06M.018 

 
Date:  February 22, 2006 

To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
From:  Peggy E. Clifton, Human Resources Director 
Re: Agenda Item – Contract Ratification – American Federation of State, 

County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) and City of Troy 

RECOMMENDATION 

City management supports and recommends approval of the tentative agreement for 
a three-year collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and AFSCME 
(hourly employees). 

BACKGROUND 

On February 10, 2006, the City and AFSCME bargaining committees reached a 
tentative agreement for a three-year collective bargaining agreement.  This 
agreement would replace the contract that expires June 30, 2006.  The AFSCME 
membership plans to conduct a ratification meeting within the next two weeks. 

This agreement is the 10th collective bargaining agreement to be achieved using the 
Interest-Based Bargaining method in which both sides discuss possible solutions to 
“issues” rather than holding to “positions” or “demands”.   

This tentative agreement provides a mutually satisfactory solution to the issues 
raised by both parties in negotiations, continues to bring more consistency in benefits 
among employee groups, and includes cost-saving measures, consistent with our 
stated goals.  We have succeeded in agreeing on a significant cost savings measure 
in retiree medical insurance, and a reasonable wage increase that is competitive both 
internally and externally.  A summary of the tentative agreement is attached for your 
review. 

 

PEC/bjm 

Attachment 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



H:Negotiations\AFSCME\2006\TA Summary 2006-02-10 

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
City of Troy and AFSCME 

2006-2009 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
 
 
ISSUE    SOLUTION 
 
Wages    3% per year, 3 year contract 
 
 
Retiree Medical Insur. a. For employees hired after 7/1/06, retiree health 

 insurance replaced with a Retirement Health 
 Savings (RHS) plan; contribution rates:  employer - 
 4%, employee - 2%  

 
b. Clarified eligibility for retiree health insurance and 

definition of “two person coverage” 
 
 
Hospitalization/Medical Insur. a. Eliminated dual coverage for employees who are 
      married to each other; that employee not eligible for 
      cash-in-lieu payment (with the exception of current 
      employees receiving the cash-in-lieu payment) 
 
     b. Employee portion of cost for family continuation to 
      be deducted bi-weekly instead of monthly 
 
 
Overtime Agreement that City will attempt to post overtime on a daily 

basis will continue until the automated system is 
operational 



 1

 
DATE: February 17, 2006 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (MARCH 20, 

2006) – REZONING REQUEST – East side of Livernois, south of Wattles, 
Section 22 – R-1C to C-F (Z-713) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and compatible 
with existing zoning districts and land uses.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of this item at the February 14, 2006 Regular meeting.  City Management 
agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the rezoning 
application.   
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Walsh College. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the east side of Livernois, south of Wattles, in Section 22. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 2.84 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is presently vacant. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
C-F Community Facilities. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 2

Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
Walsh College intends to expand its educational facilities, including additional library 
and classroom space.  The subject property is intended to provide additional parking for 
the expansion. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: St. Lucy Croation Catholic Church. 
South: Walsh College. 
East: Walsh College. 
West: Single family residential. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: E-P Environmental Protection and R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: C-F Community Facilities. 
East: C-F Community Facilities. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed C-F Community Facilities Zoning District and 
Potential Build-out Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

One-family dwelling units developed according to the standards of the One-Family 
residential (R-1A through R-1E) District in effect immediately prior to the application 
of the C-F District.  

 
Publicly owned and operated offices, public safety facilities, libraries, museums, 
fine and performing arts facilities, conference and meeting facilities, parks, and 
recreational facilities. 

 
Cemeteries in locations where such would not abut platted and developed 
residential land. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 

Private non-commercial recreational, cultural and arts facilities, institutional or 
community recreation centers. 

 
Publicly-owned service buildings, public utility buildings, telephone 
exchange buildings, electric transformer stations and sub-stations, gas 
regulator stations, and water and sewage pumping stations, without storage 
yards.  



 3

 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
 

Childcare centers, nursery schools or daycare nurseries (not including 
dormitories). 

 
 General hospitals. 
 
 Special purpose hospitals. 
 

Colleges, universities, and other institutions of higher learning, both public and 
private, offering courses in general, technical or religious education, and 
established as non-profit corporations in accordance with State law. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The subject parcel is contiguous to Walsh College, which has access to Livernois. 
  
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are some woodlands located on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the parcel as Public and Quasi Public/Community 
Facilities.  The parcel has had this classification since 1999.  This correlates with the 
Community Facilities Zoning District in the Future Land Use Plan.  The rezoning 
application complies with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
There are no location standards for the C-F Community Facilities District. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter from Walsh College. 
3. Minutes from February 14, 2006 Planning Commission Regular Meeting.  

 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z-713) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 713 Walsh College Addition Sec 22\Announce CC Public Hearing Z 713 3 20 06.doc 
 
 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

A
D

A
M

S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

ER

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO C-F



KIRK

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

R
U

TH
LAN

D

MIRACLE

W WATTLES

WENDELTON

SCOTTSDALE

E WATTLES

R
U

TH
LAN

D

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED PARKING LOT EXPANSION 
FROM R-1C TO C-F
E SIDE OF LIVERNOIS, S OF WATTLES RD.
SEC. 22  (Z-713)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO C-F

±0 200 400100
Feet



(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

KIRK

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

R
U

TH
LAN

D

MIRACLE

W WATTLES

WENDELTON

SCOTTSDALE

E WATTLES

R
U

TH
LAN

D

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED PARKING LOT EXPANSION 
FROM R-1C TO C-F
E SIDE OF LIVERNOIS, S OF WATTLES RD.
SEC. 22  (Z-713)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO C-F

±0 200 400100
Feet











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 14, 2006 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 713) – Walsh College Proposed 
Parking Expansion, East side of Livernois, South of Wattles, Section 22 – From R-
1C (One Family Residential) to C-F (Community Facility) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning request and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Alan Greene, legal counsel for the petitioner, 39577 North Woodward Avenue, 
Bloomfield Hills, was present.  Mr. Greene indicated the petitioner would like to 
proceed with the approval process, and that representatives from Walsh College 
are present should there be any questions.  He asked for the Commission’s 
support in the first stage of the Walsh College renovation expansion plan.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-02-026 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to C-F rezoning request, located on the east side of 
Livernois, south of Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 2.84 acres in 
size, be granted, for the following reasons:  
 
1. The rezoning is consistent with the intent of Future Land Use Plan and is 

compatible with the existing zoning districts and land uses. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman identified that he was at one time a member of the President’s 
Advisory Council at Walsh College.   
 
Mr. Waller disclosed that he is a current member of the President’s Advisory 
Council at Walsh College. 
 
Ms. Bluhm said it is the discretion of the Commission to exclude Messrs. Littman 
and Waller from voting on the matter should they feel there is some prejudice or 
inability to act impartially.   
 
It was the consensus of the members that there were no conflicts of interest.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 14, 2006 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







campbellld
Text Box
J-06

































TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: February 22, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Papadelis v. City of Troy  
 

 

 
 Enclosed please find a copy of the Opinion and Order issued by Oakland County Circuit 
Court Judge Colleen A. O’Brien in the most recent Papadelis v. Troy lawsuit.  The initial litigation 
between the City of Troy and the Papadelis family was commenced in May 1991, in an effort to stop 
the tremendous expansion of Telly’s Nursery in a residentially zoned district.  The litigation between 
the parties has continued since that time, since Telly’s Nursery continues to expand.   
 

In the most recent case, the Papadelis family filed a complaint against the City and Troy 
Building and Zoning Director Mark Stimac and Housing and Zoning Inspector Supervisor Marlene 
Struckman.  In this complaint, they asserted three separate counts.  First, they argued that the City 
and its officials had allegedly violated their constitutional rights, and asserted that the City was 
required to pay damages and reimburse costs and attorney fees under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983.  
Second, they requested declaratory relief that would allow them to retain their business as is, since it 
was allegedly protected by the Right to Farm Act (RTFA) and/or the City’s ordinance allowing 
agricultural uses on residential parcels over 5 acres.  Third, they requested an injunctive order that 
would “permanently enjoin the Defendants (City) from interfering with the Plaintiff’s agricultural use 
of the Property by issuing or enforcing previously issued misdemeanor citations, stop work orders or 
other tickets related to the Plaintiff’s use of the Property, or pursuing any action against the Plaintiffs 
contrary to the RTFA, the State Construction Code Act, any ruling in the Prior Action, and the July 
23 Order.”   

 
As to Count III, Judge O’Brien held that there was no authority or basis “for issuing such a 

blanket order” for injunctive relief.  In addition, Judge O’Brien held that “there is no question of fact 
that the actions of Defendants do not implicate any constitutional violations,” and dismissed the 
request for damages and reimbursable costs and attorney fees.   

 
The City’s victory in this case was not absolute, however.  Judge O’Brien, in her opinion, 

found that the Papadelis family was conducting agricultural activities, rather than retail sales, on the 
northern parcel.  As a result, the current use of the property is protected by the RTFA.  In addition, 
Judge O’Brien also determined that the Papadelis family was not required to obtain permits from the 
City to construct the greenhouses on the northern parcel.  Under the State Construction Code Act, 
permits are not required for buildings or structures that are “incidental to agricultural uses of land.”  
Since she found that agricultural uses were occurring, rather than retail sales, Plaintiffs were exempt 
from the permitting process for their greenhouses. Judge O’Brien also dismissed the City’s counter-
claim, since she found that they were using the property for agricultural purposes.   

 
If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.             
  

campbellld
Text Box
J-07












































	AGENDA: February 27, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA:  Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:  Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 William Beaumont Hospital – City of Royal Oak Hospital F
	C-2 Adoption of Brownfield Plan #4 for TCF Bank – 1470 Cooli
	C-3 Continuation of Public Hearing – Proposed Amendment to t

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advis
	F-2 Contract Ratification – Troy Command Officers Associatio
	F-3 Contract Ratification – Troy Fire Staff Officers Associa
	F-4 Contract Ratification – American Federation of State, Co

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Rezoning Request – East Side of Live�

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted
	J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted
	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted
	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Correspondence from Troy Chamber of Commerce President 
	J-7  Papadelis v. City of Troy

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



